
2558
รายงานประจำปAnnual Report
2015

บริษัท คริสเตียนีและนีลเส็น (ไทย) จำกัด (มหาชน)
Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited



¢ŒÍÁÙÅ·ÑèÇä»

 0107535000281

 

Website

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 1

ÊÒÃºÑÞ

2
3 

4 

7 
9 
10 
11 
18 
20 
21 
22 
33 
58 

69 
73 
76 
77 
79 

§º¡ÒÃà§Ô¹
80 
82 
120 

128 

Contents

134 Message from the Board of Directors
135 Report of the Board of Directors’
  Responsibility for the Financial Report
136 Report of the Audit and Corporate
  Governance Committee 
139 The Board of Directors’ Report 
141 Organization Chart 
142 Financial Highlights
143£ Type of Business and Operation
151 Income Structure
153 Shareholding Structure
154 Dividend Payment Policy
155 Management Structure
166 Corporate Governance Report
191 Corporate Social Responsibility (Report)

201 Sustainability Report
205 Risk Factors and Risk Management
208 Supervision of the use of Insider Information
209 Internal Control and Internal Audit
211 Connected Transactions

Financial Statements
212 Independent Auditor’s Report
214 Statement of Financial Position
254 Management Discussion and Analysis
  (MD&A)

262 Directors and Management Details



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  2

 

 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 3

 

 

 

 



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  4

 

 

 

 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 5

 

 



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  6

 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 7



  



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 9



  10

  

   



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 11

ÅÑ¡É³Ð¡ÒÃ»ÃÐ¡Íº Ø̧Ã¡Ô¨

»ÃÐàÀ·¡Ô¨¡ÒÃáÅÐÅÑ¡É³Ð¡ÒÃ»ÃÐ¡Íº Ø̧Ã¡Ô¨



  12



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 13



  14



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 15



  



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 17



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  18



 19



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  



 21



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  22



 23



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  24



 25



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  26



 27



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  28



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 29

1.  

 



  30

 

1. 

 

5.  

1.  

2. 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 31

 
 

   

  

  

 



  32

2. 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 33

 

 

 



  34

 

 

 

 

 

  >  



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 35

  >  

  >  
 

 

 



  36

  >  

  >  



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 37

 

     

    

    

 

  

 

 

 



  

 

 

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 39

  
 

 

 



  40

 

 

 

 

 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 41

 

 

 

 

 

 

90%70%60%40%30%10%0%

79%

73%

79%

79%
79%

79%



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  42

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

 

 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 43

 

  

   

  
 

 

  
 

 

    

  

    

 



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  44

2558 2557 2558 2557 2558 25572558 2557



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 45

  

  

*CNT

*CNT



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  46

  

  

 

 

 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 47

     

  

  

  

 

 
 

 

 
 



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  48

2557



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 49

 

 

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  50

    
 

  

    

 

  

  

 

 

  

  



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 51

  

  

   

   

   

 

    
 



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  52

   

   

    
 

   

 

 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 53

  

    

    

   

    

    

 

 
 

    
    
    
    
    
    

    

 



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  54

   

    

 
 

   

    

      

  

 

  



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 55

 

  

  

  



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  56

 

  
 
 
 

 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 57

 

  
 

 

 



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  58

CSR : Corporate Social Responsibility
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Following the heavy loss reported for 2014, last year the Company managed to achieve a much improved 

Competition in the construction market continued to be intense throughout the year, and this depressed 

Government has announced recently that we are about to see the start of tendering for several mega 

investors, but a positive impact on the overall construction market is unlikely to occur before late 2016 / 

continue to be intense competition on every tender, with a consequential adverse effect on tender 

new contracts (in conjunction with the central business development department) and to manage the 

  Santi  Grachangnetara

  Chairman

Message from the Board of Directors
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implemented on a regular basis and that important information is adequately disclosed in notes to         
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Governance Committee

oversaw the operations of the Company to ensure transparency, honesty and fairness in the best interests 

 

statements were reliable, timely and in compliance with legal and accounting standards and useful for 
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internal auditors the scope of internal auditing, their responsibilities and functions and approved the 

internal control system on quarterly basis to ensure that the Company has adequate and appropriate 

related companies, to ensure that the Company took into account the necessity and appropriateness of 

normal market practices with normal business terms and adequate disclosure of information has been 
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with the best practice guidelines for the Audit Committee, which resulted in effective implementation of 

disclosed adequate information, proper risk management and internal control systems are in place, along 

    Chairman of Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

      26th February 2016 



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 139

The Board of Directors’ Report

Annual Results of Operations and Future Outlook

Year 2015 was an improvement over the previous year, even though there was increased competition 
because of fewer jobs being available in the market, due to the slow growth of the Thai economy and the 
low level of Capital Investment in the Economy. As a result, year 2015 was a sluggish year in terms of new 
projects secured because of the absence of major infrastructure projects and the slowdown in private 
investments from the domestic as well as the foreign sector, thereby resulting in a 22% decrease of total 

improved in year 2015. In addition, the oil price reduction in the world market continued during the past 

million compared to the same period during the previous year. Inspite  of the pressure we experienced 

million.

For the reasons mentioned above, year 2015 has been an extremely challenging year for us, and we 

see a slight drop from that of year 2015 if there is no positive movement in the aforesaid factors, since we 
do not have the advantage of a large enough backlog brought  forward to this year to feed the top line 
this year. In addition, it appears that the economic situation is continuing to slow down, which will further 
impact the Company for the aforementioned reasons. However, if the schedule for new government mega 

reduce some of the competition being experienced, since large contractors will concentrate on these 
mega projects, thereby spreading out some of the presently concentrated competition and enabling the 
Company to secure more jobs.
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senior management look forward to our shareholders’ support while we embark on this exciting journey 
to achieve our vision and long term goals.

Financial Review

Appropriation

    Baht

 

 Transfer to Legal Reserve 

 Unappropriated Retained Earnings carried forward 
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Financial Highlights

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 2015 2014 2013

STATEMENTS OF INCOME   

FINANCIAL RATIO   

Note: * Dividend payout ratio compared to the Separate Financial Statements of the Company.
  (In 2014 unable to calculate the dividend payout ratio (%) because of the performance of the Company for the year 

was negative)
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Type of business and operation

The Nature of Business Operation

Today, the Company is a leader in the construction industry in Thailand providing a wide range of 

services including design and construction of building and civil engineering projects, design, fabrication 

and erection of steel structures and mechanical and electrical installations.

Market Sectors

renovation and other commercial and general buildings.

water distribution and wastewater collection tunnels, gas pipelines, 

Construction income 

 Type of Client 2015 2014 2013
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Business Operation

Main Contractor

The Company directly tenders and is awarded construction contracts from the Owner.  However, for 

subcontractors to complete part of the projects.    

Joint Venture/Consortium/Sub-contractor

In tendering and bidding for mega projects involving complicated construction activities, which may 

Construction Process

project will run according to plan and can be delivered to the customer on time and within the budget.  

Total 7,355  9,413  8,933

Type of Construction
2013

%

2014

%

2015

%
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problems to ensure that the project is completed on time.

construction drawings or from other factors that might cause a delay to the project.

Marketing and competition strategy
 

The Company always abides with all contracts with its customers.

to deliver each project to the customer on time and within the agreed budget. 

and absolute value of utilization shall be proposed to the customer to reduce time and cost with the 

in the construction business, including knowledge on various type of construction and the different 

to further develop its personnel with a modest knowledge of the construction business. 

Type of customers and target group
 

sector.  There are different kinds of industries in the private sector, such as agricultural and food,  
electronic, petrochemical, energy, tourism, modern trade etc.  The Company always maintains good 
relationships with each of its customers, which encourages them to return to the Company for their 

 
by accelerating construction projects such as mass transportation, the expansion of the electrical 
public train system and numerous other infrastructure projects which are are waiting for approval. The 
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Pricing Policy

 The client, however, will specify which price system is to be applied.  The Company sets its basic 

complexity of work and raw material availability, etc.

Procedures

sources, follow up on information from consulting companies and deal with project owners and project 
consultants, if possible.  From such sources of information, the Company is able to bid for and win new 
contracts regularly.  

project owners. 

cial performances of the contractors before issuing the invitation to bid to those contractors. 

  1.2.2 Cost estimation preparation; and

in the bidding document, then submit them on the date, time and at the place designated by 
the project owner.

 The project owner of this kind of work is usually introduced by the designer and/or the consultant 
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 The project owner, sometimes, relies on the reputation and experience of the Company, so it prefers 

may negotiate to do the design itself in addition to the construction.  This reduces the time of         
construction of the project.

Decision Making, negotiation and award of contract

1. T

and terms and conditions as stated in the tender document. 

5. In

 
bidder.

Distribution

has a number of sources of construction business information to analyze the market situation at least one 

In case the Company is interested in a particular project, it will purchase the bidding documents and assign 

for use in construction. 
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Company’s Capability in Thailand Construction Business

Exchange of Thailand.  The Company has long been established as one of the top and most highly reputa
ble contractors, trusted by clients from both public and private sectors.  The Company has never broken 

  

Business Outlook and competition

The construction industry is correlated to the development of the country, especially, in a country such 
as Thailand, which has changed from agriculture to industrialization.  The market of this industry relies 

local investors, consumers, tourist, and foreign investments.      

In Year 2015, the construction market volume dropped dramatically, which created a business environment 
of high competition.  The effects were that new bidding projects generally were not able to gain a satisfactory 
margin and this resulted in lower income than forecast. 

gradually.  The timing of the release will depend on government policy and stability.  The mega projects 
will create jobs for construction companies.  Therefore, the environment of high competition will ease 
since contractors will not have to compete only in the private sector.  The positive outlook of government 
spending, expansion of the private sector, urbanization, and industrialization will increase construction 
projects. 

The Company is constantly reviewing tender margins according to the changing market conditions while, 
at the same time, continuing the process of improving competitiveness by reducing construction costs and 
improving productivity.

Through the professionalism, experience and training in engineering and project management of its team 
members, it is the Company’s policy to focus its tendering for work with potential for future growth, such 

completion. 
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The Competitors in Construction Business

survive, construction companies had to compete in a tougher environment. All the companies tried to 

competed in the same market.  This kind of competition is unprecedented.  At present, the Company is 
operating in a tough competition market. 

The Company focused its tendering on the projects where there is low competition, and in such cases, 

lines for all construction projects of those departments.  In connection with the construction projects for 
the mass rapid transit system, the Company has negotiated with partners both in Thailand and foreign 
countries for the preparation of tenders.  

 The Company is one of few experienced companies undertaking this type of work, 

Company’s construction projects for education facilities and hospitals also satisfy Owner needs and 
standards.

The modern trade business, such as department stores, hypermarkets, distribution centers or any factory 

Owners’ satisfaction.

Backlog as of 30 December 2015

Total 5,823

Type of Construction Value (MB) Percentage

Total 5,823

Year of completion Value (MB) Percentage
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  Project Type of Value Expect to Operated by
   Construction (MB) complete

 for Learning International College, 
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Income Structure

services including design and construction of buildings, civil engineering projects, the design, fabrication 
and erection of steel structures and mechanical and electrical installations.  In some special projects, the 

 

consolidation method and cost method in the consolidated and separate income statements for the   

Subsidiary Company

 Holding
 Company

Jointly Controlled
Entities

Type of
Business

2013

% of
Shareholding

Paid up
Capital

2014

% of
Shareholding

Paid up
Capital

2015

% of
Shareholding

Paid up
Capital
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The main income of the Company came from the construction income as detailed hereunder based on 
type of business.

The group’s revenue which consisted of construction income and other income, the information of 

Revenue Structure from the Operation of Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) PCL, and Subsidiaries

Revenue Structure from the Operation of Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) PCL. (Company only)

Write off of the trade and

Reversal of allowance for

Reversal of allowance for

Total Revenue 7,355  100.00          9,437  100.00 9,045  100.00

Revenue
2015

%Million Baht

2014

%Million Baht

2013

%Million Baht

  other payables

  loss on investment in subsidiary

  subsidiary

  other expenses

  doubtful accounts

Total Revenue 7,266  100.00         9,052   100.00           8,175    100.00

Revenue
2015

%Million Baht

2014

%Million Baht

2013

%Million Baht
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Shareholding Structure

The list of top 10 major shareholders, as at 30th December 2015 was:

The Group of majority shareholders, as at 30th December 2015 was:

The Group of majority shareholders has assigned its representatives to take positions of authorized direc-
tors in the Company.  In this regard, the number of representative directors are considered as appropriate 
not in proportion of number of shareholdings.

Globlex Corporation Co., Ltd. 581,126,256 57.944
Victor Investment Holdings Pte., Ltd. 102,472,280 10.218
Mr. William Ellwood Heinecke 66,267,810 6.608
UBS AG Singapore Branch  34,784,600 3.468
Thai NVDR Co., Ltd. 21,707,966 2.165
Mr. Santpal Sinchawla 6,000,000 0.598
Mr. Arj Attakraweesunthorn 5,121,910 0.511
Mr. Prasit Cheewanunthachai 3,760,000 0.375
Mr. Sooksawang Anurakthanakarn 3,250,000 0.324
Mrs. Darawan Thipayanate 3,055,000 0.305

Shareholders Number of Shares %

Globex Corporation Co., Ltd. 581,126,256 57.944

Shareholders Number of Shares %
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Dividend Payment Policy

The Company’s Board of Directors has the policy to propose to the Annual General Meeting of           
Shareholders to approve the dividend payment to shareholders based on the Company’s operating   

Federation of Accounting Professions) provided that there was no other necessary event and such 
dividend payment does not have substantial impact to Company’s normal business. 

the connected company.
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Management Structure

The Company has 2 Boards and 4 Committees as follows :
 1. The Board of Directors
 2. The Executive Board of Directors
 3. The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
 4. The Remuneration Committee
 5. The Nomination Committee
 6. The Risk Management Committee

The Board of Directors consists of 11 directors as follows:
 1. Mr. Santi Grachangnetara Chairman of the Board of Directors
    Chairman of the Executive Board
 2. Mr. Kirit Shah Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
    Executive Director
    Nomination Committee Member |
    Remuneration Committee Member
 3. Mr. Khushroo Kali Wadia Executive Director
    Risk Management Committee Member
 4. Mr. Kasemsit Pathomsak Chairman of Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
    Chairman of Nomination Committee
    Chairman of Remuneration Committee
 5. Mr. Kris Thirakaosal Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
    Nomination Committee Member | 
    Remuneration Committee Member
 6. Mrs. Nampung Wongsmith Chairperson of Risk Management Committee
    Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Member
 7. Mr. Somchai Jongsirilerd Director
 8. Mr. Ishaan Shah Director | Executive Director
 9. Mr. John Scott Heinecke Director
 10. Mr. Suphon Tubtimcharoon Independent Director
 11. Mr. Surasak Osathanugraha Director and Company Secretary | Executive Director 
    Risk Management Committee Member

Details of Directors are disclosed in “Directors and Management Detail” in Attachment No. 1.  Details of 
Directors in subsidiary please refer to “Connected Transaction” which is part of this Annual Report. 
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Qualifications of Directors

relevant laws and regulations and in accordance with the Good Corporate Governance Policy of the 
Company.

b) Knowledgeable, possess good background experience, capable, independent to perform director’s 
duties with care and loyalty, and able to attend Directors’ meetings regularly. 

Strategy, International Accounting, International Finance, Law and Corporate Governance.

* Mr. Jirayut Rungsrithong was resigned from Independent Director, Audit and Corporate Governance Committee     
Member and Chairman of Risk Management Committee On 11th September 2015.  At the Board of Directors Meeting       
No. 420 held on 12th November 2015, it was resolved to appoint Mrs. Nampung Wongsmith as an Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee Member and Chairperson of Risk Management Committee as proposed by the Nomination 
Committee.  Mrs. Nampung Wongsmith term on the aforementioned Committee will be equal to the remaining terms of 
Mr. Jirayut Rungsrithong. 
** At the Board of Directors Meeting No. 421 held on 8th December 2015, it was resolved to appoint Mr. Suphon        
Tubtimcharoon, with immediate effect, as an Independent Director as proposed by the Nomination Committee. 

1. Mr. Santi Grachangnetara The Chairman of the Board of Directors 10 April 2008
2. Mr. Kirit Shah The Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors 11 November 2011
3. Mr. Khushroo Kali Wadia Managing Director 11 November 2011
4. Mr. Surasak Osathanugraha Assistant Managing Director 2 March 2010
  and Company Secretary
5. Mr. Ishaan Shah Executive Director 10 April 2012
6. Mr. Kasemsit Pathomsak Independent Director 10 April 2012
7. Mr. Kris Thirakaosal Independent Director 6 December 2012
8. Mrs. Nampung Wongsmith* Independent Director 8 August 2014
9. Mr. Suphon Tubtimcharoon** Independent Director 8 December 2015
10. Mr. Somchai Jongsirilerd Director 10 April 2008
11. Mr. John Scott Heinecke Director 10 April 2013

Director’s Name Position Appointment Date

Election of the Board of Directors
The election of Directors is conducted by the meeting of shareholders.  Each shareholder has one vote 
per share and each shareholder exercises all votes applicable in appointing one or more persons to a 
Director.  The candidates are ranked in descending order from the highest number of votes to the lowest, 

candidates are tied, which would otherwise cause the number of directors to be exceeded, the Chairman 
has the casting vote.

1. The Board of Directors
-

ent Directors, which shall not be less than 3 Directors.
There are 11 Directors which consists of
 6 Non-Executive Directors 4 of whom are Independent Directors
 5 Executive Directors

The Board of Directors’ members as of 31st December 2015 are as follows:
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not in any competing construction business for both listed and non-listed company.

the concerned person.

Roles and Duties of the Board of Directors
1. The Board of Directors perform it’s duties in conformity with applicable laws and carry on the 

business of the Company in accordance with the laws, the Company’s objectives and the Articles of 
Association as well as the resolutions of the shareholders’ meetings. It is authorized to carry on any 
activities as prescribed in the Memorandum of Association or those related thereto under the       
Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535. The Board of Directors is responsible to the Company’s 
shareholders. Each Director represents all shareholders and takes part in supervisory and regulatory 

all shareholders and other stakeholders.
2. The Directors, in their business conduct, are expected to generally act with care and exercise their 

duty of care to preserve the interests of the Company.
3. The Board of Directors or the Shareholders at their meetings are entitled to give authority to the          

executive directors to operate the Company’s business and designate the authorized Directors to    
bind the Company.

 The Company’s present authorized signatories are: 
  

one of Mr. Santi Grachangnetara or Mr. Khushroo Kali Wadia jointly sign with Mr. Surasak                

4. The Board of Directors are authorized to sell or mortgage any of the Company’s immovable          
properties, to let any of the Company’s immovable properties for a period of more than three years, 

5. Specify or approve the Mission Statement, Vision, Values and Code of Business Conduct.
6. Review Vision, Mission at least every 5 years and review Corporate Governance Policy and Code of 

Business Conduct annually.
7. Review and discuss Management’s proposed strategies and options and approve major decisions in 

respect of the Company’s business direction and policies. The Board of Directors also reviews and 
approves the Business and performance goals proposed by the Management.

8. Monitor the Company’s performance and progress toward achieving set objectives as well as          
compliance with the laws, regulations and related policies.

9. Ensure the existence of an effective internal control system and appropriate risk management      
framework.

10. Ensure an effective audit system executed by both internal and external auditors.

generally accepted applicable accounting standards.
12. Ensure that the Company has a proper system in place to communicate effectively with all           

stakeholders and the public.
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responsibilities of Directors and the management comply with Corporate Governance principles.

16. Attend the meeting of shareholders to report results of operation answer questions and listen to 
suggestions and comments from shareholders.

2. The Executive Board of Directors
The Executive Board of Directors consists of 5 Directors and is appointed by the Board of Directors.  The 
members of the Executive Board are as follows: 

Qualifications of Executive Directors

other relevant laws and regulations, and in accordance with the Good Corporate Governance Policy 
of the Company.

b) Knowledgeable, possess good background experience, capable, independent to perform an Executive 
Director’s duties with care and loyalty, and able to attend Directors’/Executive Directors’ meetings 
regularly. 

certainly not in any competing construction business and also not un full time executive position.

the concerned person.

Roles and Duties of Executive Directors
1. To manage the Company’s business under the resolutions/regulations of the Board of Directors.  With 

the resolution of the Board of Directors 
  To purchase and sell Plant, Equipment and other Assets, to provide security to lenders, including 

mortgage on the Assets and to maintain the Assets of the Company and its subsidiaries in              
accordance with the programme set out by the Board of Directors.

  To borrow money from Banks, Financial Institutions and other organizations and to execute   

behalf of the Company and its subsidiaries.
  To make advances, deposits and loans as may be required in the interest of the Company and its 

subsidiaries.
  To open and operate the bank accounts of the Company, appoint authorized signatories to       

operate the bank accounts, buy and sell currencies as may be required for the operations of the 
Company and its subsidiaries.

1. Mr. Santi Grachangnetara Chairman of the Executive Board of Directors
2. Mr. Khushroo Kali Wadia Managing Director

4. Mr. Kirit Shah Executive Director
5. Mr. Ishaan Shah Executive Director

Name Position



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 159

2. To execute any agreements/contracts including bidding for various jobs and tenders, enter into 
contracts with customers for the provision of construction services, including the supply of materials 
and other services and goods as may be required with terms and conditions under the scope of 

of any two Executive Directors together with the Company’s seal. 
3. To generally act on behalf and in the interests of the Company and its subsidiaries as may be required 

to carry on the business.
4. The Executive Board of Directors shall report on the business operations conducted by the Executive 

Board to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement and discussions. However, policy-related issues, 

action by the Board of Directors in compliance with laws or the Company’s Articles of Association, 
must be approved by the Board of Directors. This also includes issues for which the Executive Board 
of Directors considers it appropriate to seek the approval of the Board of Directors on a case-by-case 
basis, or per the criteria designated by the Board of Directors.

submitted to the Board of Directors for approval.
6. Review management authority in various aspects stipulated in the approval authority hierarchy, to be 

submitted for approval to the Board of Directors.
7. Appoint, monitor and evaluate the performance of employees from the level of General Manager 

down to middle managers.
8. Monitor and report on the Company’s operating results to the Board of Directors as well as on other 

work in progress to achieve the Company’s objectives.
9. Communicate with external stakeholders, as per designated authority, and as deemed appropriate.
10. Prepare and review policy and guidelines for risk management and monitor the management to 

11. Prepare and review policy and guidelines for good Corporate Governance and guidelines to               
implement Corporate Social Responsibility.

3. The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee was appointed by Board of Directors with the objective 
of having a mechanism to assist the Board independently in accordance with the regulations and the 

report’s correctness, credibility and transparency, to encourage the good corporate governance including 
coordination with the Board of Directors for risk management and internal control systems in the Company. 

connected party transactions, if any. 

The Board appointed Independent Directors as the Audit Committee on 16th November 2000 according to 
the resolutions of the Board of Directors’ meeting No. 340.  Thereafter on 20th February 2013 the Board of 
Directors meeting No. 404 has resolved to amend the name of the Audit Committee from Audit Committee 
to Audit and Corporate Governance Committee since the existing roles and responsibilities of Audit      
Committee of the Company includes Corporate Governance also and in order that the Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee emphasize consistently on the compliance of relevant regulations and continue 
the development of Corporate Governance of the Company. 
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The Committee is presently comprised of 3 Independent Directors, each of them to hold their position on 
the Committee for a period of 3 years from the date of their respective appointment.

Composition of Audit & Corporate Governance Committee
1. There must be at least 3 members.
2. Chairman of the Board of Directors is not the Chairman of the Committee nor the member.
3. 

Qualifications of Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Members
a) Must be appointed by the Board of Directors or by the shareholders in a shareholders meeting.
b) All the members must be Independent Directors.
c) Not a Board member of parent company or subsidiary company which is also a listed company
d) Not holding shares exceeding 0.80 percent of the total number of shares issued by the Company or 

in the management and business of the listed company, its subsidiaries and associated companies 
and also that of the Company’s substantial shareholders.

the Company.
g) Not a Board member assigned to make decisions on business operations in the Company, its parent 

h) Be able to freely perform and give opinions, or report the result of the duties assigned by the Board 
of Directors without being controlled by the management or major shareholders or any other related 
persons.

i) Having duties and responsibilities in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SET.
j) At least 1 committee member must have knowledge, understanding or experience in accounting or 

and details of the experience have been presented in the “Directors and Managements Details” in the Attachment 1 of 
this Report.
** Mr. Jirayut Rungsrithong was resigned from Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Member on 11th September 
2015.  At the Board of Directors Meeting No. 420 held on 12th November 2015, it was resolved to appoint Mrs. Nampung 
Wongsmith as an Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Member as proposed by the Nomination Committee.        
Mrs. Nampung Wongsmith term on the aforementioned Committee will be equal to the remaining terms of Mr. Jirayut 
Rungsrithong. 

of the Committee. 

 Mrs. Nampung Wongsmith

Name
Duration on

the Committee
Position
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Roles and Duties of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

disclosure.

the independence of internal audit department, including approval of the selection, promotion, and 
rotation or termination process of the internal audit head.                                       

3. Review risk management system of the Company and recommend improvements on a regular basis.
4. Review guidelines for the Company’s good corporate governance and make recommendations to the 

Board of Directors.
5. To review the performance of the Company to ensure compliance with the securities and exchange 

law, regulations of the exchange and other laws relating to the business of the Company.
6. To select and nominate for the shareholders’ approval, the external auditor of the Company,    

including recommendation of remuneration of the external auditor after considering the                  

Corporate Governance Committee shall meet privately with the external auditor at least once a     
year, without the management team being present.

and to ensure accurate and complete disclosure of the same.
8. Monitor and receive complaints or information from stakeholders submitted to the Board of Directors.  

The primary investigation report must be submitted to the external auditor within 30 days, if the  
Committee had receive any information regarding suspicious behaviours that Director, Managers or 
person in charge of the operations of the business of the Company have committed and offences 
against the law in accordance to Section 89/25 of the Securities and Exchange act No. 4 B.E. 2551.

9. Annual review of Audit and Corporate Governance Committee’s charter to ensure that it is up to date 
and suitable for the Company’s environment. 

10. To prepare a report on the monitoring activities of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee, 
in accordance with the required details of SET’s regulations and disclose it in the annual report, such 
report to be signed by the Chairman of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee.

11. To perform any other acts as delegated by the Board of Directors and accepted by the Audit and 
Corporate Governance Committee.

4. The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee has been appointed by the Board of Directors as a mechanism to assist    
the Board in independently proposing the criteria of and setting guidelines for the remuneration of          
directors and senior management and to propose the remuneration to the Board of Directors who           

governance practices based on the proposals made by the Remuneration Committee.  The Board of    

recommendations on the same to the shareholders for their approval. 

The Board appointed the Remuneration Committee on 20th February 2013, which consists of 3 Directors.
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Composition of Remuneration Committee
1. There shall be at least 3 Directors as members on the Remuneration Committee.
2. The Majority of the Committee shall always be comprised of Independent Directors.
3. The Chairman of the Committee shall always be an Independent Director.

Executive Directors.
5. The Company’s Chairman shall not be the Chairman of the Committee nor a member

Qualifications of Remuneration Committee Members

or an associated company.

business of the Company, its subsidiaries or associated companies.

subsidiaries or associates.
d) They must not be acting as a nominee or representative of any Executive Director or an executive 

e) They must be able to carry out their duties, exercise their judgment, and report the committee’s       

Duties and Responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for duties assigned by the Board of Directors as follows:
1. Set out compensation guidelines for Directors and senior management and propose the same to the 

Board of Directors.
2. Propose the Directors’ Remuneration for the Board to make its recommendations and express its opin-

ion for approval in shareholders’ meeting.
3. Update to the Board of Directors about compensation norms being followed by companies in Thailand 

and abroad.

Remuneration Criteria

shareholders for their approval.

Company and should be comparable with other listed companies in general and should also be       
comparable with other listed companies in the same sector. 

1. Mr. Kasemsit Pathomsak Chairman of Remuneration Committee  Independent Director 2 months
2. Mr. Kirit Shah Remuneration Committee Member Executive director 2 months
3. Mr. Kris Thirakaosal Remuneration Committee Member Independent Director 2 months

Name
Duration on

the Committee
Status Position
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5. The Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee has been appointed by the Board of Directors in order to set up a mechanism 
to assist the Board to independently propose the criteria and set guidelines for nomination of new           
Directors and recruitment and selection of top executives, and thereafter propose to the Board of           
Directors who could then consider the proposal and decide to accept or reject the same or amend it for 
further approval by shareholders if required (for the appointment of Directors).  

The Board of Directors approved to appoint the Nomination Committee on 20th February 2013 and which 
currently consists of 3 Directors.

Composition of Nomination Committee
1. There shall be at least 3 Directors as members on the Nomination Committee
2. The majority of the members of the Committee are Independent Directors.
3. The Chairman of Committee is an Independent Director.
4. The Company’s Chairman is not the Chairman of the Committee nor a member.

Qualifications of Nomination Committee Members

Duties and Responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee is responsible for duties assigned by the Board of Directors as follows:
1. Set out selection and nomination guidelines of appropriate persons and propose the same to the 

Board of Directors.
2. Review the Board structure and propose a succession plan for Directors and Senior Management.
3. Propose to the Board, names of potential candidates for appointment as Directors. 
4. If requested by the Board of Directors, assist in the process of review of performance of Directors.

Management for consideration by the Board of Directors.
6. Other jobs assigned by the Board of Directors.

Nomination Criteria

candidates expected to add value to the Board.
2. Consideration of the qualities of leadership, vision, ethics, and honesty to uphold the highest         

principles of Good Corporate Governance.
3. The candidate should not be a person prohibited under the Public Companies Act, the Securities and 

Exchange Act, announcement of the securities and Exchange Commission or any other laws relating 

organisation (including the SEC) or convicted of any crime.

2. Mr. Kirit Shah Nomination Committee Member Executive director 2 months

Name
Duration on

the Committee
Status Position



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  164

  Engaging, having been a partner in an ordinary partnership, an unlimited liabilities partnership in a 
limited partnership or having been an executive, director in a company or other listed company in 
the business similar to or compete with the Company and its subsidiaries.

  Having been a partner in a contract, a concession contract or having been the Company’s      

liabilities partnership in a limited partnership or having been an executive, director in a company 
or other listed company operating in such manner.

  
6. 

Board of Directors of the Company.

6. The Risk Management Committee

th February 2013 and 
which currently consists of 3 Directors.

th September 
2015.  At the Board of Directors Meeting No. 420 held on 12th November 2015, it was resolved to appoint 

Committee.  Mrs. Nampung Wongsmith term on the aforementioned Committee will be equal to the 
remaining terms of Mr. Jirayut Rungsrithong. 

Composition of Risk Management Committee
1. There must be at least 3 directors in the Committee.
2. The Company’s Chairman is not the Chairman of the Committee nor a member.

Committee.

  Committee
 Mrs. Nampung Wongsmith 
  Committee 

3. 

Name
Duration on

the Committee
Status Position
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Qualifications of Risk Management Committee Members
a) Must be appointed by the Board of Directors or by the shareholders in a shareholders meeting.
b) At least one (1) member must be an Independent Director.

Roles and Duties of the Risk Management Committee

-

performance to the Board of Directors every quarter.

6. Communicate, collaborate and share information with Audit and Corporate Governance Committee 

7. Perform any other acts as delegated by the Board of Directors.

Company Secretary

 
Osathanugraha, having duties and responsibilities in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act and 
to be responsible for overseeing and advising the Board and the Management regarding applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and good Corporate Governance, and responsible for holding the Board and Sharehold-

the Company’s documents and information.

subject “Directors and Management Detail” of this Annual Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Definition

Corporate Governance is a set of structure of relationships between Company’s management, its board 
and its shareholders to enhance the business competitiveness towards prosperity and long term        

Company has endeavored to follow the same completely in letter and spirit.

Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited recognizes that good corporate governance is             
important and necessary for sustainable growth in business and long term shareholders value, and 
accordingly, with the resolution of the Board of Directors Meeting held on 14th February 2013, the         
Corporate Governance Policy Manual, Business Ethics and Code of Conduct Manual have been set up   
and disclosed on the Company’s website under the subject of “Corporate Governance”.  The Board of 
Directors conducts an annual review of the Corporate Governance Policy (the “Policy”) and evaluation of 
the Policy’s implementation, so that the Policy is up to date and appropriate with the current situation. 

The Policy shall be reviewed and the implementation thereof shall be evaluated to ensure that the Board 
of Directors, Sub-Committees, Management and Employees understand and implement the Policy 
correctly. 

The Company’s implementation of Good Corporate Governance Principles is outlined in 7 sections      
hereunder:

1. Rights of Shareholders
 The Company recognizes the rights and equitable treatment of shareholders and maintains a smooth 

Company, the right to receive dividend, the right to attend the shareholders’ meeting, the right to 
propose agenda in the shareholders’ meeting, the right to vote for the appointment of auditor and 

 Apart from the basic rights of shareholders above, the shareholders have the right to received           
information on the operating performance of the Company, the newsletter from the Management 

Governance Guidelines, the Company has conducted its affairs with a view to protecting               
shareholders’ rights and also encourage all shareholders to exercise their rights.  The policy for     
maintaining rights of shareholders is part of the Company’s Corporate Governance Policy Manual 
which is disclosed on the Company’s website.

 The Company is responsible to the shareholders in terms of information disclosure, accounting  

Management are expected to be honest and any decision must be based on honesty and fairness to 

procedures followed to protect the rights of the Company’s shareholders are follows:
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 1.1 Appointment of Board members
  The Company has continuously improved the documents required for the appointment of each 

Board member individually to give additional information in the nominees’/existing Directors’ 

the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).  The aforesaid information is provided so that the 
Company’s shareholders can get correct and complete information, which is relevant and 
required for the appointment of Board members.

 1.2 Consideration of the policy on Director’s remuneration

at the AGM, and has also disclosed guidelines/procedures for determining Directors’                  
remuneration in 4.2 “Directors and Management Remuneration” hereunder.

 1.3 Appointment of auditors

Company at the AGM, and has improved the information disclosure for the correctness and  
completeness of the information required, such as their experience, independence and fees for 
the decision on the appointment of auditors.

 1.4 Consideration of the dividend policy

  Presently, the Company’s dividend policy is remains unchanged.  However, any future changes 
will be subject to approval from the shareholders.

 1.5 Shareholders’ Meetings

/SEC for holding shareholders’ meeting as follows:

  > For the AGM of shareholders as of year 2015, the Company provided an opportunity to the 
shareholders to propose agenda items for the AGM and an opportunity to the shareholders to 
nominate suitable candidates for membership of the Board of Directors of the Company.  In 
practice, shareholders with a combined holding of at least 2,000,000 shares could propose 

th November 2014 until 15th January 2015, 
which exceeds the privileges provided by law to shareholders. The Company has set up this 
policy, as well as made communication channels through the Company’s website and 
announcements through the SET, based on which, a shareholder or a group of shareholders 
could propose an agenda item and nominate candidates to be Director for consideration at the 
AGM.

  > Providing complete and correct notice with full information when calling shareholders’     
meetings is the normal policy of the Company. Such notice includes the objective and reasons 
for each agenda item, apart from the Board of Directors’ comments/opinion thereon, which  
has always been included. It is made certain that the Company does not amend the agenda of 
the shareholders’ meetings without giving notice to shareholders.

  > For the AGM 2015, the Company disclosed the AGM schedule and the AGM Agenda through 
the SET and Company’s website from 27th February 2015 (61 days before the AGM date) for 
shareholders to plan their schedule for the meeting.
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  > The Company disclosed the notice of shareholders’ AGM 2015 on the Company website from 
25th March 2015 (35 days before the AGM date).  The company also instructed the Thailand 
Securities Depository Co., Ltd., which is the Company’s Registrar, to send the AGM 2015 
notice to each of the shareholders on 31st March 2015 (29 days in advance of the AGM). 
Shareholders can get more information from our Investor Relations by calling phone number 
+66 2 338 8079 or at the Company’s website at  www.cn-thai.co.th

  > The Company publishes the notices of shareholders’ meetings in both Thai and English  
newspapers for 3 consecutive days and at least 7 days or 14 days (in case there is any 
connected transactions) prior to shareholders’ meeting.

  > The Company provides full opportunity for shareholders to participate in the meetings and 

Management and/or related persons.
  > The Company prepares the minutes of shareholders’ meetings, which are clear and complete 

and include the names of the Board members’ who attended the meeting. The minutes also 
include a correct and complete record of questions/answers, voting method, vote counting 
procedure and voting results.

  > The Company has always followed the policy of obtaining the shareholders’ approval from 
an Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders for any major event and in case of any 
serious situation that affects the Company’s operations, and has always provided correct and 
complete information required for their decision. 

  During the year 2015, the Company held one shareholders’ meeting, which was the AGM No. 82 
on 30th

in advance.  Duty stamps were provided to shareholders using the proxy form.  The proxy form 

  Before commencing the meeting, the Chairman informed all attendees about the voting         
procedure, vote casting and counting, the use of ballot and disclosed of votes counting in each 
agenda item for transparency, including the shareholders’ right to express their opinion or raise 
questions in each agenda item.  The meeting was in order, there were shareholders present at 
the Meeting in person and by proxy, holding shares in aggregate of 794,927,916 shares equal to 
79.2625 percent of the paid-up shares.  The agenda of this AGM of Shareholders was considered 
chronologically as it appeared in the notice submitted to shareholders prior to the AGM, without 

the notice. All agenda items were voted on and approved in conformance with the relevant 
laws.  During the 2 hours of the AGM, shareholders were allowed to freely express their opinions, 
give suggestions, and raise questions on any agenda items.  The Directors, Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee members and/or Executive Directors gave clear information to the 
shareholders in each agenda item. 
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  The following members of the Board of Directors attended the meeting:
   1. Mr. Santi Grachangnetara Chairman of the Board of Directors
      Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors 
   2. Mr. Khushroo Kali  Wadia Managing Director 
      Executive Director

      Director and Company Secretary
      Executive Director

       Member of Remuneration Committee 
      Member of Nomination Committee 
   5. Mr. Jirayut Rungsrithong Independence Director
      Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

   6. Mr. Somchai  Jongsirilerd Director

   8. Mrs. Nampung  Wongsmith Independent Director

  Directors and Management
   1. Mr. Kirit Shah Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
      Executive Director   
      Member of Remuneration Committee 
      Member of Nomination Committee 

      Governance Committee
      Chairman of Remuneration Committee 
      Chairman of Nomination Committee 
   3. Mr. Ishaan Shah Director

  Auditors

  Legal Advisors

  After the Meeting, the minutes were prepared with all substantive issues, including voting results, 
for submission to the SET, and posted on Company’s website within 14 days after the Meeting. 

2. Equitable treatment of Shareholders
 The Company ensures the equitable treatment of shareholders in terms of calling and holding       

following steps:
  > Ascertaining that the date, time, venue of the meeting is convenient to attend.
  > Offering one-share-one-vote.
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  > Facilitate proxy voting: clearly specifying the documents required to give proxy and by      
sending out the notice to the Company’s shareholders prior to the meeting date at least 7 
days or 14 days (in case there is any connected transaction).  For shareholders who are 
unable to attend each meeting, the Company has designated the Chairman and/or an          
Independent Director to attend and to vote on their behalf in each meeting. Full details for 
this purpose are provided in the notice of shareholders’ meetings. Moreover, the Company 
has provided Proxy Form B and the notice of the shareholders’ meeting both Thai and English 
on Company’s website for downloading. 

completion of registration.
  > Providing ballot papers for each agenda item.
  > Arranging a barcode system for registration and vote counting for shareholders’ convenience 

and accuracy of the vote-count.
  > Providing an opportunity to shareholders to propose agenda items and to nominate           

candidates for Directorship in advance for the AGM of Shareholders through various channels 
including the Company’s website.

  > Providing an opportunity for shareholders to elect Directors by voting on the given ballot 
papers for each of the Directors separately.

  > Not adding any new agenda item without notice to the shareholders in advance.
  > Directors disclosing their interests and those of their related parties to the Board.
  > Directors reporting their ownership of Company’s shares to the Board regularly.

their relatives, if any, to the Company for the Company’s use in complying with the regulation 
about connected transactions. Such reports on interest are also useful in monitoring their 
adherence to their duties, by the following practices:

    
within 30 days after appointment.

    Thereafter, when there is a change, said Director/Executive submits the updated form 

from the transaction date. 
    The Company Secretary submits a copy of the report on interest to the Chairman of the 

Board of Directors and the Chairman of Audit and Corporate Governance Committee 

  > The Board of Directors has established a guideline to prohibit a Director/Executive, who has a 

  > Providing detailed explanations of related-party transactions, characterizing names, relationship, 
policy, and value of each transaction as explained under the “Connected Transactions” section 
of this Annual Report. No non-compliance cases involving related-party transactions have been 
detected.

  > Following an appropriate policy and laying down procedures for monitoring the use of insider 
information as explained under the “Insider Trading Controls” section of this Annual Report. 
No cases of insider trading involving the Directors and/or the Management have been 
detected.
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3. Recognition of Role of Stakeholders
 

government agencies and other related organizations. The Company is aware that the support from 

which would contribute greatly to the Company’s long term success and prosperity. The Company 

to express his/her opinion and contact the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee in case they 
wish to do so directly without going through the Management. The Committee will treat such              

 Management:
the Company’s operations, and accordingly, Management remuneration is appropriately structured 
and comparable with the Industry norms and other equivalent listed companies in Thailand. The 

and responsibilities, which are approved by the Board of Directors.

 Employees:
Company’s operations. The Company aims to build commitment and a long and sustainable             
relationship with all its Employees. The employment policy is set out to provide transparent,             

 Employment Policy

 The Company provides fair and equal opportunities in employment, job security, and career               
advancement, as well as adhering to other good principles related to Employees and employment. 

 Remuneration Policy
 The Company provides a fair compensation commensurate with ability and performance, and 

 Salary is based on the performance, duties and responsibilities of each Employee.

 Increments/bonus
depends on many factors beyond the Employees’ direct control.  Therefore, the Company has 

 
Employees and the Company.  However, the contribution rate from the Company is increased in 
connection with number of Employees’ years of services to promote good morale and serve as a long 
term incentive to Employees who have many years of service.   
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 *Average training for 3 Programs during the year is 174 hours.  

 To create and develop the leadership is one of the Company’s missions to develop staff from           
supervisor level and this will be the focus of training in year 2016.  In addition to the training program 

project managers.  The program training is not less than 90 hours per year.  

 With regard to the ASEAN Community, the Company realizes the importance of improving its staff 

 

 Training Policy

their jobs for the Company’s business, and understand the relevant codes of conduct and practices, 

-
-

 1. Group of operation staff – Top Management and Staff at Management level

  The Company applies the principle of “Competency development” for training.  Goal, indicators 
and action plans are set according to Individual Development Plans (IDPs).  There are 3 levels in 
Competency Development.      

Core Competency All levels 30 hrs./ session / year To ensure that all staff understand the core
For staff at all levels     values of the organization which is 
   achievement oriented, cost effective,
   customer focused, initiative and alertness.    

   pro-active analytical and planning, resources
   management, management, communication
   and co-ordination, leadership.  

 Professional Staff  their professional duties and responsibilities.     

Objective of the programType of Competency Level of
staff

Average training
hour per employee
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 2. Group of Operation staff at construction sites 

training.   The Company has built a training center at Nimitmai Road to provide full facilities for training 

for every construction project.  During the past year the Company had increased the training 

76% was trained during last year.  The programme which are conducted are:

 In year 2017, the Company plans to integrate the e-learning system to the Career Development Plan 
with the objective of enhancing employee’s competency in accordance with the Company’s short-term 
and long-term development strategy. 

 Creditors : The Company recognizes Financial Creditors as one more important factors of success, 
who provide funds which are essential for the Company’s highly capital intensive business. The Com-
pany complies with all terms in borrowings, including compliance with the objectives of using the 
borrowed funds, repayment, collateral, and other conditions as may be agreed.

 Suppliers :
ensures that terms and conditions for Suppliers are based on Industry norms and practices and there-
after, agreed terms and conditions are strictly followed by the Company.

Welding (Additional in year 2015) 48 7%
 60 9%

Tower crane signal   120 17%
Use of heavy machine  36 5%
Safety in constructing and using scaffolding 255 37%

Competency Development 174 25%

Program Percentage
Training
Per Hour

300

174/25%

25020015010050

Use of Heavy Machine

Welding

Tower crane signal

Safety in construction and using scaffolding

0

255/37%

36/5%

120/17%

60/9%

48/7%

Competency Development
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 Customers : The Company recognizes the importance of Customers, who support the Company’s 

exclusively for the concerned business, without revealing it unless required by laws, regulations, or 

exercises, price setting, and details of services, quality and safety.

 Competitors:

information or use dishonest or inappropriate means for any purpose.

 Social Responsibility to the Community: The Company recognizes its responsibility to the          
Community and is often involved in supporting Community activities and being attentive to the 

going beyond what the relevant laws require. The Company has provided a separate detailed report 
under the subject of “Social Responsibility Report” of the Annual Report.

 Regulators: In the construction business, the Company’s is governed by many laws and regulations. 

included its review of compliance as one of the duties of the Internal Audit Department headed by 

of related laws and regulations and reports directly to the Audit & Corporate Governance Committee, 
as explained under the “Audit & Corporate Governance Committee Report” of this Annual Report.

 Environment: The Company recognizes that the construction business, if conducted irresponsibly, 
may affect the environment by both noise and air pollution. For the protection of the environment, 

Report. 

90%80%70%60%50%40%30%20%10%

Would you recommend / use our company again of the new

Site safety and environmental management
Quality of our subcontractors provided

Quality of plant and quipment provided

Competence of site staffs and site organization
Reacted to any problems, complaints and corrective action

Provide good methods and good construction techniques
Completion complied with programme and milestones

Communication and co-operation with your organization

0%

83%
79%

83%
73%
72%

75%
79%

82%

79%
79%

81%
72%

79%
84%
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 In addition, the Company has educated and provided a training program for environmental issues, to 
create awareness among the staff regarding the importance of environmental protection at all times.  
The policy was set out as follows:  

  1. Use materials and energy economically.  Re-use material as appropriate.   
  2. Use recycled material, products from reliable suppliers. 
  3. Implement appropriate measures to prevent any damage to the environment and neighbors 

during the construction period.  
  4. All working areas and construction sites must be kept clean and tidy at all times.

 Respect for International Human Rights Principles : The Company requires that all of its Directors, 
the Management and Staff strictly respect international human rights principles as part of the          
operations, and the Company does not tolerate any violations thereof.  The Company also               
encourages the improvement of the quality of life of disabled people, by employing them under the 
same terms and conditions as other Staff.  Moreover, the Company also provides facilities for the 

 Ethics for Intellectual Property Rights : The Company requires that all of its Directors, the               
Management and Staff strictly respect the intellectual property rights of others with due care and 
caution.

 Policy on preventing corruption and offering bribes : The Company has guidelines for preventing 
corruption and offering bribes as follows:

  
conducted correctly, honestly, and in ways that are certain not to cause condemnation or     
loss of reputation.  Gifts received by Directors are generally retained within the Company or        

   The Company shall take immediate action both in terms of the Company’s regulations and 
legal if any employee is found and proved to be dishonest in their duties and responsibilities.

   Procurement is to be conducted according to the Company’s guidelines and should be fair 
to all involved.  The procurement’s decisions are to be made on the basis of reasonable 
prices, quality and services, and should stand scrutiny if an investigation occurs.

   Transactions with the Government must not be such as to persuade the Government or 

building relations, within the proper bounds and normal practice, such as offering congratula-
tory

 Communication with the board of directors and whistle-blowing policy

 The Company has a policy and guidelines on anti-corruption and does not engage in any form of 
bribery.  This policy is clearly stipulated in the Corporate Governance Policy Manual and the Business 
Ethics and Code of Conduct Manual which has always been strictly complied with.
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 To ensure the fair treatment of all stakeholders, either internal stakeholders, such as Directors,             
Employees, and Executives of the Company, or external stakeholders such as shareholders, customers, 
trade partners, competitors, the society, the environment, the public sector, and relevant agencies, all 
stakeholders can communicate with the Company’s Board of Directors for complaints, suggestions, or 
recommendations, giving useful information or evidence about illegal actions or violations of the Code 
of Conduct, as well as behaviour implying corruption.  The procedure to protect such whistle-blowers 
has also been put in place. To foster trust, information regarding whistle-blower messages will be kept 

communication with the Board of Directors as follows:

 Contact
 The stakeholders can communicate with the Board of Directors by writing a letter with their name, 

address, phone number, fax number and e-mail (if any) and the relationship with the Company and 
emailing it to ponpisch@cn-thai.co.th or sending it to the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee 
at the address below.

  Khun Ponpisith Charoenthai,
  Secretary of Audit and Corporate Governance Committee
  Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited
  727 La Salle Road, Bangna, Bangna District, Bangkok 10260

 The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee will verify the information received before reporting 
to the Board of Directors.  When the whistle-blower does not reveal himself, the Company will 
consider such issue only if it has information or suggestions that can be useful to the Company.

 Guideline for anti-corruption and bribery policy
 The Company’s Board of Directors declared an intention not to participate in any form of corruption. 

This is in compliance with Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption 
(CAC).  In year 2015, the Internal Audit Department had adopted the self assessment form as set by 

The objective is to prepare for the Company’s readiness to participate with CAC. The guidelines are 
as follows:

   The Company and the Group have formulated a policy of anti-corruption and provided   
guidelines in the Corporate Governance Manual and the Business Ethics and Code of Conduct 
Manual.  The policy is in accordance with the principle of integrity and aims to create value 
for the Company’s shareholders, including the equal treatment to all stakeholders. The  

Staff that must be strictly followed.  
   

prevent business conduct of the Company from any actions related to corruption in any form.
   The Company and the Group provide a system of internal controls to oversee and monitor 

their compliance with the Corporate Governance Manual and Business Ethics and Code of 
Conduct Manual by requiring regular audits.  The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit 
and Corporate Governance Committee and/or Managing Director who has decided to 
integrate audits relevant to corruption into internal audit plans.

   The Company and the Group regularly examine and, where appropriate, improve the standard 
of anti-corruption measures proposed in the Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Action      
Coalition Against Corruption Project (CAC) and review the Corporate Governance Manual and 
the Business Ethics and Code of Conduct Manual with the aim of adopting clearer and more 
inclusive guidelines. 
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4. Disclosure and Transparency 
 The Company has tightened procedures to take care of important information to be disclosed, includ-

accurately, on a timely basis and transparently, through the proper channels that users can fairly and 
trustfully access. 

 4.1 Board of Directors’ Report

Responsibilities for Financial Statements is presented along with the Report of Independent   
Auditor and Audited Financial Statements in this Annual Report.

 4.2 Directors and Management Remuneration

  On 20th February 2013, the Board appointed and assigned the Remuneration Committee to set 
procedures for consideration of the remuneration of the Directors and Management.  The Remunera-
tion Committee will propose the remuneration for the Directors.  The Board of Directors is not 
empowered -
tions on the same to the shareholders for their approval.

-
tion of the Executive Directors based on the remuneration in the Industry for equivalent positions,  

  In the years 2015 and 2014 the Company proposed the remuneration, meeting allowance and 
bonus pay to the Board of Directors to the shareholders for their approval. The Directors’            
remunerations approved by the shareholders’ meetings are as follows: 

1. Chairman of the BOD - - 60,000 60,000 20,000 20,000 2% of Cash 2% of Cash
2. Director - - 30,000 30,000 10,000 10,000 Dividend Dividend
       Payment Payment
3. Chairman of Audit & CG       Equal to Equal to
   Committee (Additional       1.0 MB. 4.01 MB
   remuneration) 60,000 60,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 The allocation The allocation
4. Audit & CG Committee       of Bonus of Bonus
   Member (Additional       payment is payment is
   remuneration) 45,000 45,000 30,000 30,000 25,000 25,000 subject to subject to
       the judgement the judgement
5. Chairman of other       of Board of of Board of
   Sub-committee - - - - - - Directors Directors
6. Member of other
   Sub-committee - - - - - -

Bonus

Meeting Allowance
Audit & CG
Committe

Baht/Time/Person

2015 2014

Board of Directors
Baht/Time/Person

2015 2014 2015 20142015 2014

Description
Remuneration

Baht/Month/Person
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  A comparison of the regular remuneration paid to the Chairman of the Board, each Director, the 
Chairman of Audit and Corporate Governance Committee, each Audit and Corporate Governance 
Committee member among the Company and other listed companies and other construction 
listed companies is as follows:

  **From IOD’s Thai Directors Compensation Survey 2014
  ***Additional Remuneration as Chairman of Audit & CG Committee / Audit & CG Committee Member

  **From IOD’s Thai Directors Compensation Survey 2014
  ***Compared only remuneration, meeting allowance and bonus as Chairman of Audit & CG Committee /
  Audit & CG Committee Member

  A comparison of the regular remuneration, meeting allowance and bonus paid to the Chairman 
of the Board, each Director, the Chairman of Audit and Corporate Governance Committee, each 
Audit and Corporate Governance Committee member among the Company and other listed  
companies and other construction listed companies is as follows:

Chairman of the BOD 240 240 944 240 3,600 678 240 2,000 966 120 4,560
Executive Directors 120 120 427 120 1,728 272 80 700 437 60 2,942
Non-Executive Directors 120 120 447 60 1,728 315 120 800 394 48 2,076

Chairman of Audit & CG 360 360 401 60 1,080 343 100 1,200 338 40 1,392
Committee***

Audit & CG committee 300 300 297 60 840 262 40 800 250 25 1,080
members***

All listed companies

**Other Listed companies

Max

Unit : Thousand Baht/person/year

MinMeanMaxMinMean

Description
Listed companies

with revenue
5,001 - 10,000 MB

MaxMinMean20142015

Listed companies
Property and
construction

*CNT

Chairman of the BOD 710 1,323 2,606 564 12,600 1,565 503 4,652 2,308 172 14,145
Executive Directors 355 661 1,551 324 7,728 893 309 2,565 1,383 117 9,647
Non-Executive Directors 355 661 1,518 109 7,728 962 280 2,633 1,321 85 9,636

Chairman of Audit & CG 325 660 549 80 1,405 500 131 1,638 478 50 1,892
Committee***

Audit & CG committee 265 525 398 80 1,090 368 65 1,025 363 35 1,470
members***

Description

Monthly remuneration,
Meeting allowance

and Bonus

Monthly remuneration, Meeting
allowance and Bonus

Monthly remuneration, Meeting
allowance and Bonus

Monthly remuneration, Meeting
allowance and Bonus

Comparison for regular remuneration

Comparison for regular remuneration, meeting allowance and bonus

All listed companies

**Other Listed companies

Max

Unit : Thousand Baht/person/year

MinMeanMaxMinMean

Listed companies
with revenue

5,001 - 10,000 MB

MaxMinMean20142015

Listed companies
Property and
construction

*CNT
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  Directors Remuneration
  In the past year, the Company’s directors received remuneration in term of monthly remunera-

tion, meeting allowance and bonus as follows:

  Management

  Name and position of the Company’s executives (as on 31st December 2015)

   Detail of Company’s executives are described in “Directors and Management Details” as per 
Attachment No. 1 to this Report.

   Violation records - None

 1 Jan. - 31 Dec. 2015
Mr. Santi  Grachangnetara 240,000.00 300,000.00 196,823.22
Mr. Kirit  Shah 120,000.00 150,000.00   84,911.61
Mr. Somchai  Jongsirilerd 120,000.00 120,000.00   84,911.61
Mr. Surasak  Osathanugraha 120,000.00 150,000.00   84,911.61
Mr. Khushroo Kali Wadia 120,000.00 150,000.00   84,911.61
Mr. Kasemsit  Pathomsak 360,000.00 390,000.00   84,911.61
Mr. Ishaan  Shah 120,000.00 150,000.00   84,911.61
Mr. Kris  Thirakaosal 300,000.00 180,000.00   84,911.61
Mr. John Scott Heinecke 120,000.00 90,000.00   84,911.61

    8 Aug. - 31 Dec. 14
Mrs. Nampung  Wongsmith 144,500.00 120,000.00 34,722.22

 1 Jan. - 11 Sep. 15
Mr. Jirayut  Rungsrithong 208,333.00 225,000.00 84,911.61

    1 Jan. - 14 May 14
Mr. Paniti  Junhasawasdikul - - 31,250.00

 8 Dec. - 31 Dec. 15   
Mr. Suphon  Tubtimcharoon 8,000.00

Meeting
Allowance

Baht

Monthly
Remuneration

Baht
Name

Bonus
Year 2015

Baht

1. Mr. Santi Grachangnetara Chairman of the Executive Board of Directors
2. Mr. Khushroo Kali Wadia Managing Director
3. Mr. Surasak Osathanugraha Assistant to Managing Director
4. Mr. Pipat Anusithakul Construction Operation and Technical Services Director
5. Mr. David Greenbank Commercial Director
6. Mr. Nipon Pansak Assistant Construction Operation Director
7. Mr. Vites Ratanakorn Assistant Technical Services Director
8. Mr. Pichet Nimpanich Assistant Business Development Director

Name Position
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  Executive Directors appointed by the Board of Directors are :

     Name Position
   1. Mr. Santi Grachangnetara Chairman of the Executive Board of Directors
   2. Mr. Khushroo Kali Wadia Managing Director
   3. Mr. Surasak Osathanugraha Assistant to Managing Director
   4. Mr. Kirit Shah Executive Director
   5. Mr. Ishaan Shah Executive Director

  Remuneration for Management

  In the year 2015 and 2014, the Company and its subsidiary paid remuneration, including salary 
and bonus, to directors and executives for 16 persons (2014 – 16 person) totaling 34 million Baht 
(2014 = 42 million Baht).   

  Other remuneration

  Other remuneration for directors   - None –

  Other remuneration for Executives 

  The Company provided the Provident Fund for all Staff including Executives with contribution rate 
from Staff at 5 percent and contribution from Company at the rate of 5-9 percent (depending on 
each Executive’s years of service).  In the year 2014 the total contribution from the Company for 
4 persons is Baht 0.7 million.  

 4.3 Information on Company’s shareholding by Directors and Managements both direct and indirect

  According to Section 59 of the Securities and Exchange Act, B.E. 2535, Directors, Management and 
Executives (including their spouses and all minors) have to report the change of their shareholding 

requested to refrain from trading the Company’s shares for the period of 30 days before           

  During the last year, the aforementioned persons have strictly complied with this policy.  It is the 
responsibility of the aforementioned persons

information that might affect the Company’s business or share price.  The use of the information 

as is incorporating such information in a business that competes with or is related to the Company.  
If there is any change, the Company Secretary will report such change in shareholding of the            
Directors, Management and top Executives to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis.    
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 4.4 Relations with investors

  The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of accurate, complete and transparent           

share price.  The Company provides information through the SET and the Company’s website.  
While the Company undertakes investor relations at the top Management level, the Company has 
also designated persons as the contact points in the Company to service investors, shareholders, 
analysts and public as under.

   Mr. Khushroo Kali Wadia Managing Director
    Telephone : +66 2 338 8111
    E-mail : khushroowa@cn-thai.co.th

   Mr. Surasak Osathanugraha Assistant to Managing Director (Finance & Accounts)
    Company Secretary
    Telephone : +66 2 338 8100
    E-mail : surasakos@cn-thai.co.th

   Mrs. Phanee Charoencharoenchai Group Finance and Accounts Senior Manager
    Telephone : +66 2 338 8077
    E-mail : phaneech@cn-thai.co.th

  The Company participates in the investor relations activities held by SET called “Opportunity 
Day” quarterly, including interaction with press, which are attended by the Managing Director and 
Assistant to Managing Director. 

  During the past year, the Company had joined 4 Opportunity Days and also took part in a number 
of press interviews.

Globlex Corporation Co., Ltd. 581,126,256 - 581,126,256 57.940

Mr. Ishaan Shah 102,472,280 - 102,472,280 10.218
Spouse and Minors

As of 31/12/2015

Change in
year 2015

As of
31/12/2014

Ordinary Shares
(No. of Shares)

Numbers Percentage

Name

Directors and management shareholding report

 2015 5 6 5 7 23
 2014 7 4 5 6 22
 2013 5 4 5 5 19
 2012 1 1 2 1 5

Year /No.
of time

Meeting
with Analysts

Meeting
with Investors TotalPresentations Interview with

newspapers/TV
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5. Responsibilities of the Board 

 5.1 Board Structure
  The number of members on the Board of Directors is commensurate with the size and complexity 

of the Company’s business. Currently, there are 11 Directors on the Board of Directors of the    
Company which consists of: 

   5 Executive Directors (1 Director as full-time employee of the Company), 
   2 Non-Executive Directors and
   4 Independent Directors.  
   The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee comprises entirely of Independent Directors.

  
  Executive Director :
  An Executive Director is a Director who is involved in the Management of the Company on a 

full-time basis and receives regular monthly remuneration from the Company in the form of salary 
or its equivalent.

  Independent Director :
  The Independent Directors are independent from the Management and have no business or   

activities with the Company and must not be involved in the day-to-day management of the  

the Shareholders.
  -

tions of the SET and the SEC, Thailand.

  
   Holding shares not exceeding 0.80 per cent of the total number of shares with voting rights of 

the Company, its parent company, subsidiaries, associate companies, major shareholder or 
controlling person, including shares held by related persons of such Independent Director.

   Neither being nor used to be an Executive Director, Employee, Staff, Advisor who receives salary 
or other kinds of compensation from the Company, its parent company, subsidiaries, associate 

of interests (present and during less than 2 years prior to the date of appointment). 
   They must not be a blood relative, legal relative, related person or close relative of any          

Executive Director, top Executive, major shareholder or controlling person in/of the Company.
   Neither having nor used to have a business relationship pursuant to the regulations of the      

management and business of the Company, its subsidiaries, associated companies, or its major 
shareholders.

   Neither being nor used to be an auditor or a provider of any professional services including 

shareholder, controlling person or partner of the provider of professional services, unless the 
foregoing relations has ended not less than 2 years prior to the date of appointment.

   They must not be acting as a nominee or representative of any Director, major shareholder or 
shareholders, who are a relative of any major shareholders of the Company.
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   Not undertaking any business of same nature and in competition to the business of the       

Director, Employee, Staff, Advisor who receives salary or controlling person or holding shares 
exceeding one per cent of the total number of shares with voting rights of other company 
which undertakes business in the same nature and in competition to the business of the     
Company or its subsidiary company.

   They must be able to carry out their duties, exercise their judgments, and report the 
committee’s performances, which are assigned by the Board of Directors without being               

 Directors or major shareholders of the Company, including related 
persons or relatives.

   Not having any other characteristics which cause the inability to express independent opinions.
  

shareholders, or any other company having similar major shareholders. May be appointed by 
the Board of Directors to make decision in a group (collective decision) regarding business 

interest.

  

This kind of connection may affect the Independent Directors in carrying out their duties              
independently or conveniently.

  Independent Directors’ Roles and Duties
  1. 

adequately for them to perform their duties effectively.
  2. They are expected to regularly attend every Board meeting, including committee meetings, 

and raise good questions to ensure the interests of the Company’s shareholders’ and the 
protection of rights of other stakeholders’, and ensure that the Company complies with best 
practices.

  3. Independent Directors are expected to possess abilities and display willingness to learn about 
the Company's business and are also expected to express their views independently, as well 
as dedicate time and attention to the Company as needed.

  4. Independent Directors are expected to regularly hold meetings among themselves, and try in 
every way possible to look for opportunities in which they can discuss business management 
issues with the Management.

the appointment and every subsequent year if required.

on 
replacement
Independent Directors and their understanding of the business must also be taken into 
account. Accordingly, at present no time limit has been set up for the Independent Directors 
apart from the statutory limits placed under applicable law. 
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  Other Committee
  Apart from the Board of Directors and the Executive Board of Directors, the following                    

sub-committees were appointed by the Board of Directors on 20th February 2013 :
   The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee (Formerly “Audit Committee”, changed 

with the Board of Directors resolution on 16th November 2000) 
   The Remuneration Committee
   The Nomination Committee
   The Risk Management Committee

“Management” in this annual report. 

  Other principles and practice involved
  A) Term of Directors
   Board of Directors : At every AGM, one-third of the Directors shall retire.  The Director who has 

the number or Directors closest to one-third shall retire.  The retiring Directors may be 
re-elected. In addition, the tenure of a director normally should not be longer than three 
consecutive terms but this requirement may be waived by the Board of Directors after due 
consideration.

   Sub-Committee Members :
same term as that of his/her Board membership. The tenure of a Sub-committee member 
normally should not be longer than three consecutive terms.

   Independent Directors : The Independent Directors of the Company shall normally hold 

may exceed the aforesaid limit. 

  B) Board of Directors’ and sub-committees’ Meeting
   The Board of Directors’ meetings are required at least 6 times per year and held quarterly on 

a regular basis, but extraordinary or special meetings, if required, may be called at any time 

Company’s operations. The Company Secretary sends the notice of each meeting and the 
relevant documents to all Directors, at least 7 days prior to the meeting date, so as to allow 

-
mum quorum required for the Board of Directors to vote on a particular matter is no less than 
two-thirds of all Directors, unless there is an overriding necessity or urgent matter.

   The Company Secretary records the minutes, and after each meeting, the draft minutes are 
proposed to all Directors for their consideration. Such drafts are generally distributed to 
Board members before the minutes are adopted at the next meeting, and are kept for 
scrutiny by Board members and other concerned parties. 

   Normally, Board meetings will take 2-3 hours.  In 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors held 
5 regular meetings and 1 extraordinary meetings.  
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   The attendance of the Directors in Board of Directors meetings, Sub-committee meetings and 
shareholders’ meetings in the year 2015 was as followings:

 Note : *Mr. Jirayut  Rungsrithong independent Director was resigned on 11 September 2015
   ** Mrs. Nampung  Wongsmith was appoint as an Audit & CG Committee and Chairperson of Risk Managent 

Committee on 12 November 2015
   ***Mr. Suphon  Tubtimcharoom was appoint as an independent Director on 8 December 2015

   
  C) Aggregation or Segregation of Positions
   The Chairman is not the same person as the Managing Director of the Company nor is he 

related in any way to the Managing Director of the Company in order to segregate the duties 
between the policy maker and the policy manager.

   The Chairman is the leader of the Board of Directors and serves as the Chairman of the Board 
of Directors meetings and the shareholders’ meetings.  The Managing Director is the leader of 
the Management team and operates the business to achieve the objectives as outlined. 

   Company Secretary
   In keeping with good corporate governance, the Company designated Mr. Surasak                 

Osathanugraha as a Company Secretary, having duties and responsibilities in accordance    
with the Securities and Exchange Act and responsibility for overseeing and advising the   
Board and the Management regarding applicable laws, rules, regulations and good corporate 
governance, and responsible for holding the Board and shareholders’ meetings.   

  D) Procedures for new directors
   The Company holds orientation meetings for new members of the Board. In these meetings, 

are given by the Chairman of the Board, the Managing Director, and/or senior Executives. 
Material documents are also provided to new Directors, including the Directors’ Manual, the 
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, and the Company’s latest Annual 
Report. The main areas of focus are roles and responsibilities of Directors, policy statements 
on corporate governance, approval authorities, prohibitions under applicable laws, and roles 
and responsibilities of the Sub-committees of the Board. 

Mr. Santi Grachangnetara 6/6 3/3     1/1
Mr. Kirit Shah 6/6 3/3  2/2 2/2  -/1
Mr. Somchai Jongsirilerd 5/6      1/1
Mr. Surasak Osathanugraha 6/6 3/3    4/4 1/1
Mr. Khushroo Kali Wadia 6/6 3/3    4/4 1/1
Mr. Kasemsit Pathomsak 6/6  5/5 2/2 2/2  -/1
Mr. Ishaan Shah 6/6 3/3     -/1
Mr. Kris Thirakaosal 4/6  4/5 2/2 2/2  1/1
Mr. John Scott Heinecke 4/6      1/1
Mr. Jirayut Rungsrithong* 3/6  3/5    1/1
Mrs. Nampung Wongsmith** 6/6  1/5    1/1
Mr. Suphon Tubtimcharoon*** 1/6      -/1

Annual
General

Meeting of
Shareholders

Risk
Management
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Audit & CG
Committee

Nimination
Committee

Executive
Director

Board of
Directors

Sub-committee
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  E) Directors and Management Remuneration
   

amount, in addition to meeting attendance fees and bonuses, which were approved at the 
shareholders’ meeting. 

   The remuneration for Executive Directors and top Management consists of salary, bonuses and 
provident fund. 

by 
remuneration of the Chairman and the Managing Director based on the remuneration in the 

respective individual responsibilities and performances.

   The remuneration of the Directors and Management has been disclosed hereinabove under 
the subject of “Disclosure and Transparency”.

  F) Board Self Assessment

   Assessment of the Board is divided into 2 parts:
   a. Assessment of the Board and Sub-Committees as a whole.
   b. Assessment of each Board member and each Sub-Committee member

   Last year, Board Self Assessment was conducted for the Board of Directors and Audit and 
Corporate Govermance Committee as a whole.

   Board self-assessment is conducted each year on a regular basis. The Board of Directors         

performance comparison. The Company Secretary shall distribute the assessment forms to 
each member of the Board, then collect the completed forms and submit them to the     
Chairman of the Board, for performance evaluation. Thereafter, the evaluation results will be 
used for discussion in a meeting of the Board where the recommendations given by Board 
members will be adopted for improvement of the Board’s performance, for the optimal 

   At the Company’s Board of Directors meeting held on 29th December 2015, the “Board    
Self-Assessment” was considered, with the major 

    
    
    
    
    
     Self development of Director and Executive.

   The overall performance of the Board of Directors was excellent. The Board of Directors will 
use this assessment to further improve their performance. The Company intends to conduct 
this assessment every year which is in accordance with good corporate governance policy.  
The next assessment of the Board of Directors will be conducted in 2016.
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   Assessment of the executives

   Assessment of the Executives is conducted on an annual basis in consultation with the     
Managing Director.  As for assessment of the Managing Director, the Board of Directors has the 
duty to review the targets and performance criteria.  With respect to the performance   
assessment of Executives, the Company’s Management will set up key performance              
indicators following the goals and strategies for each year, and monitor and assess the        
performance, and submit assessment results to the appropriate persons for consideration.

   Directors and Management Training

   Board of Directors continues to try and enhance their value by participation in activities, 
courses and events which add to their knowledge base in the continually changing business 
environment to ensure that they are updated and possess full knowledge. All the Company’s 

    Year 2015   

  

   The Company forms succession plans with the objectives of making human resources        
ready in advance, both in terms of quality and quantity, ensuring continuity of appropriate 
management, and selecting suitable Employees for the Company’s key jobs, which consist    
of the top Executives in the Company’s divisions, the key positions in the Company’s       

   The persons who are responsible to nominate successors and to grant approval on the          
successors
group of persons responsible for nominations is the Nomination  Committee, or others as 

approval can be either the Board, the Nomination Committee, the Chairman of the Executive 
            

depending on the level of each key position needing a successor.

  Operating Guidelines

the Managing Director or the Executive Directors are unable to perform their duty due to tempo
rary absence for any reason like sickness, travel, etc.
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 5.2 Roles, Duties and Responsibilities Leadership and Vision

  

the Company’s affairs with good corporate governance in order to reach the objectives in           
accordance with Company’s policy and in accordance with the law. The Board of Directors is   
comprised of persons who have the knowledge, expertise, business experience and background 
which qualify them to perform their duties and responsibilities in accordance with the highest 
standards of business ethics.  The Board of Directors will review Company’s vision and missions at 
every 5 year. 

between each committee as mentioned under the “Management Structure” section of this 
Annual Report.

  

   1. Rights of Shareholders;
   2. Equitable treatment of Shareholders;
   3. Recognition of Role of Stakeholders;
   4. Disclosure and Transparency;
   5. Responsibilities of the Board;
   6. Controlling System and Risk Management;
   7. Business Ethics.
   

  

subsidiaries was done by the Management.  Starting from year 2013, the Company set a policy for 

best interests of the subsidiary and not the Company.  

for related transactions, acquiring/selling of assets, or other important transactions, such         
transactions are correctly and completely disclosed, in compliance with the rules set out by the 
Company, including the proper record of all information and accounting records which can be 
investigated and submitted to the Company for consolidation of accounts on time. 
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6. Controlling System and Risk Management 
 

segregation between operations units, control units and assessment units for the purpose of         

and accounting functions of the Company is clearly set up which allows adequate reporting to the 
relevant Management.

ensure that the Company has complied with laws and regulations relating to the business of the   

Audit Department completely independent of the Management.

 1. 
Company.

 3. Full compliance with the Company’s policies, laws and regulations.

7. Business Ethics
 The Company has set up a code of ethics for Directors, Management and employees as a guideline 

 

 
 

is considered very carefully by the Board of Directors with a view to full compliance with the relevant 
rules and regulations of the SET and the SEC, Thailand, apart from compliance with the internal 
policies and guidelines set up by the Company. Moreover, such transactions are entered into strictly 

with generally acceptable, standard commercial terms and conditions and appropriate disclosure 
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transaction that the Company carried out was important to the Company’s business, according to 
standard commercial competition, generally based on price list as a priority and in the best of            
interests of the Company, as well as whether it is disclosed in the Annual Report.   

amended from time to time including the circular letter of the SEC about the recommended          

The details of the connected transactions have been explained under the topic “Connected           
Transactions” of this Annual Report. The results of the review have been reported to the Board of 
Directors of the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion that such         

 Reporting changes in Company share ownership

 To prevent abuse of inside information, all of the Company’s Directors, including their spouses, must 
report any changes in their Company share ownership to the Company in case of sale or purchase of 
Company’s shares.  The changes in Company share ownership, if any, is reported to the Board of 
Directors meeting every quarter.

The Stock Exchange of Thailand Principles of Corporate Governance which the Company has not 
taken in year 2015 is as follows:

The Board should encourage for succession plan The Board of Director is preparing the succession plan
for the Managing Director and the Top Management. for the Managing Director and the Chief Executives but
 cannot complete within this year.

The Board should do the assessment for This principle cannot be performed within this year, 
the Managing Director. but may be taken in the future.

The Board should do the individual assessment for This principle cannot be performed within this year,
each of the members of the Board. but may be taken in the future.

The Company should provide an appropriate The Company may consider making this policy by
compensation policy for the Board and the Management. arranging advice from an outside expert, but it
 cannot be prepared in this year.

Principles of Corporate Governance The opinion from the Board of Director



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 191

Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) for the Company means the Company’s responsibilities             
towards communities and the environment, which also includes conducting its business with good        
corporate governance for long term sustainable development. The Company is aware of and acts on its 
responsibilities towards all stakeholders, the environment, communities and society arising from any 
impact which may occur from its operation for the sustainable growth of the Company.  

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy   
Incorporated over 8 decades ago, the Company is proud to be a part of the country’s development on 
both, social and economic fronts. All along, it has been the Company’s policy to conduct its business with 
good corporate governance, while acting with responsibility towards society and the environment, which 
is   translated into a clear policy for conducting the Company’s business operations.   

The Company applies the principles of Corporate Social Responsibilities set out by the Stock Exchange of 
Thailand (“SET”) as its guidance for the following: 
 1. Good corporate governance
 2. Fair business operation
 3. Respect of human rights and fair treatment of labour
 4. Consumer responsibility
 5. Participation in social development
 6. Environmental conservation

Corporate Social Responsibility Operation

The Company realizes the importance of long term resource utilization both, direct and indirect, such      
as employees, suppliers who supply natural construction material, various communities and the             
environment.  The Management has set a clear policy to develop, encourage, promote and maintain the 
utilization of such resources with responsibility and good practices which is in accordance with good 
corporate governance.  The Company believes that a successful business, conducted with all stakeholders’ 
in mind, can create long-term sustainability in social and environmental issues and enable the Company 
to achieve its missions.  The policies are outlined and disclosed as follows:

1. Good corporate governance

of all stakeholders and related persons for sustainable growth of the business.  The Company has 
set up a Corporate Governance Policy Manual, which has been disclosed on the Company’s website 
under the subject of “Corporate Governance”. 
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2. Fair business operation

 The Company has established measures to prevent unfair competition and trade barriers. The      

disclosure and transparency, which has been disclosed on the Company’s website under the subject 
of “Corporate Governance”.

 Anti-corruption Policy

 The Company’s Board of Directors has declared an intention not to participate in any form of          
corruption. This is in compliance with Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against 
Corruption (CAC).  Further details are provided under the section “Corporate Governance Report”. 

3. Respecting Human Rights and Labour Practices 

 The Company requires that all of its Directors, the Management and Staff strictly respect                   

international human rights principles as part of the operations of the Company, and do not tolerate 

any violations thereof.  The Company also strives to improve the quality of life of disabled people, 

by employing them under the same terms and conditions as other Staff.  Moreover, the Company 

wheelchairs, special toilets, etc.

4. Responsible for consumer and stakeholders

 The Company has established guidelines to ensure that all internal and external stakeholders         

are treated with the same high level of fairness.  The guidelines are written in the “Corporate 

Governance Policy Manual” under the “Corporate Governance” section on the Company’s website 

and under the “Corporate Governance Report”, which is part of this Annual Report. 

 The Relationship between the Company and Stakeholders

 The Company conducts its business with responsibility toward social and environment to meet the          

expectation of both internal and external stakeholders.

  Internal stakeholders:

  1. Shareholders

  2. The Management and Employees

  External stakeholders:

  1. Customers

  2. Suppliers and creditors

  3. Competitors

  4. Social and communities

  5. Environment

 The Company’s guidelines for corporate social responsibilities to ensure the sustainability of the  

Company and the communities it was directly or indirectly affecting were established as part of its 

business process (CSR in Process).  The Board of Directors or Management has set up the policy and 

conducts periodic reviews to control and monitor this policy regularly, to ensure that it is up to date 

with changes in the environment, for long term sustainable development. 
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 The Company’s policy is to emphasize on conducting its business with responsibility towards all 

stakeholders. The Company actively propagates awareness of social responsibility through its 

business operation process (CSR in process) which is in line with the guidance set by SET.

  Shareholders
  The Company recognizes the right to and importance of equitable treatment of shareholders, 

and maintains a smooth working relationship with its shareholders to safeguard their best       
interests, as discussed in “Corporate Governance Report”, which is part of this Annual Report.

  The Management and Employees
  Management
  The Company recognizes that Management is one of the key factors of success for the 

Company’s operations, and accordingly, Management remuneration is appropriately         
structured and comparable with the Industry norms and other equivalent listed companies in 
Thailand.  The Management is also allowed to work independently without interference as 

  Employees

  The Company recognizes the importance of its Employees as another key factor of success 
that drives the Company’s operations and is integral to stakeholders’ satisfaction.  Moreover, 
the Company is managed as a long-term and sustainable entity for the development of the 
country, the society and the economy. The policy for employees’ development provides for 

of all Employees.  Having quality employees is an important factor for the success of any 
organization. They can add value and productivity to their respective organizations, which 
collectively results in the country’s development. 

  
is part of this Annual Report. 

  Staff Number
  In 2015, the Company had a total number of 788 employees, comprising of 84 new recruits.  

Gender 0-25 26-30 31-40

Age Range

41-50 50 and up Total

Female 17 41 55 51 21 185
Male 44 52 207 196 104 603

Total 61 93 262 247 125 788

FemaleWork Places Male Total

 Construction Work site   69 441 510

Total    185 603 788
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  As of 30th December 2015, there was a total of 4,332 workers working at the Company’s 

under Memorandums of Understanding.

  After one year of service, employees are entitled to 10 days of Annual leave 

  *Annual leave for 727 employees who are entitled for Annual leave in 2015.

  Construction business is labour intensive; as such the number of male workers at worksite is 
more than female workers.

  The Company also respects the international human rights principles at all times.  The       
Company does not discriminate on the grounds of race, gender, nationality, language,            

they are equally paid, entitled to welfare, opportunity for training and career advancement.

  Policies for Employee

  Promoting Health Policy

  The Company provides yearly physical check-ups to all its Employees with the aim of            
detection and protection before any severe disease that may occur. The Company also 

Employees, to enable them to access better medical services.  Moreover, the Company also 

care and use of medicine. The Company also promotes its Employees’ good health by hiring 
trainers to conduct aerobic exercise and yoga classes for Employees who want to exercise 
after working hours, twice a week.  In line with the Company’s intention to promote the good 

Thai workers          1,536 2,509 4,045
Migrant workers under MOUs                34 243 277

Total          1,570 2,752 4,332

Type of Workers Female Male Total

 Sick Leave  402 1,464 3.6:1
 Business Leave  242 561 2.3:1
 Annual Leave*   722 3,933 5.4:1

No. of
PersonLeave Category

No. of
Days

Average 
(Day : Person)
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  Safety & Health

  The Company is now in the process of applying for Occupational Health and Safety                 

running under safe conditions.  There is a daily morning “Safety Talk” to brief all Employees 

to be aware of safety during their day to day operations.  The Company has also set out a         

campaign for the awareness of health and safety at work sites, called the “Best Sites for Safety 

and Cleanliness”, whereby the best performing sites in these aspects are rewarded with cash 

improves morale and encourages safety awareness at every stage of their work.  The best 

safety performance is judged in accordance with safety standards outlined by OHSAS’s      

standards regarding safety management.

  In 2015, Accident Statistics are as follows:

January 2,591,799 27 10 11 4 0 0

February 4,439,761 56 13 31 7 0 0

March 6,263,845 82 13 49 8 0 0

April 8,004,848 97 12 55 7 0 0

May 10,156,935 118 12 67 7 0 0

June 12,308,581 137 11 73 6 0 0

July 14,557,187 153 11 82 6 0 0

August 16,963,402 177 10 91 5 0 0

September 19,074,001 194 10 101 5 0 0

October 20,917,615 212 10 112 5 0 0

November 22,385,171 229 10 126 6 0 0

December 23,782,360 240 10 133 5 0 0

Month Man-hours

Total Accident
Target < 50 Case

: 1 MMH

Lost Time Accident
Target = 20 Case

: 1 MMH

Fatality
Target = Zero

Frequency
in 1 MMHTotal

Frequency
in 1 MMHTotal

Frequency
in 1 MMHTotal

ACCIDENTS STATISTIC 2015
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  Construction projects rewarded as part of Safety Campaign

  Last year, there were 17 construction projects out of 40 projects that were awarded according 

to the Company’s safety campaign, having worked for 3 consecutive months without lost time. 

Total rewards awarded was Baht 332,500.-   

  Training and development 

  The Company has a policy to promote all Employees’ knowledge and skills by providing various 

training courses, which are related to their existing duties and responsibilities, general            

management and skills in the Company’s main construction activities.  The training is provided 

both in-house as well as externally. 

  The Company training center was built in year 2013 at Nimit Mai Road.  The purpose of this 

training centre is to enhance Company’s development programme with more space in order 

to facilitate more staff training programs. 

  The Company applies a Competency programme, as a development tool for Employees to 

boost their advancement on their career paths. The programme is focused on:    

    1.  Company’s Core Competency  

     1.1)  Achievement Orientation 

     1.2)  Cost effectiveness 

     1.3)  Customer focus

     1.4)  Initiative and 

     1.5)  Alertness

    2. Managerial Competency

    3. Functional Competency

   The Human Resources Department consults with the heads of each department to ascertain 

the needs for their sub-ordinates’ development, and make an annual training programme 

Employee and their sub-ordinates to make the IDPs part of training.  Each Employee is required 

to attend at least 1 training programme a year.  

  Apart from in-house training, the Company also sends Employees to attend training 

programmes organized by other organizations related to Company’s business or general       

management, so that Employees gain new knowledge, ideas, and to develop innovation.  After 

training, they apply their new learning in their existing job duties for the development of       

their careers. 
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  Newly employed young engineers are a major resource of the construction business, are 

trained to develop their basic knowledge and in the Company’s special techniques.  This      

campaign is called the “Young Engineer”, whereby the Company recruits new graduates from 

engineering institutes and trains them starting with the Company’s fundamentals, such as 

work sites (on the job training).  The Company believes that after training, these young 

engineers will carry out their duty according to the Company’s standards and will become the 

Company’s future assets and continue to maintain the Company culture. 

  With regard to the ASEAN Economic Community, the Company realizes the importance of 

improving its staffs’ English communication skills.  The Company provides an in-house English 

  Total expenses for training for the year 2015 was Baht 898,400.- detailed is as follows: 

  Details of the Training and Development Policy are disclosed under “Corporate Governance 

Report” which is part of this Annual Report. 

  Housing/camping

  The Company provides housing for Employees who are working at outside Bangkok city       

limits in order to facilitate living and reduce the impact of higher cost.  The Company builds 

temporary camp sites located near its construction sites for staff and labour including         

sub-contractors’ labours.  These camps must be safe, clean and with a healthy living              

environment.  

  Child care at construction sites

  It is the Company’s policy to provide housing for staff and workers who are working at 

construction sites.   In addition to housing, at some construction sites with a long period of 

construction and a large number of staff and workers, the Company may provide a child care 

center for the children of staff and workers.  This is to improve the quality of life for those 

children.  During the past some construction sites, e.g. Lotus RCD Surat Thani, with the             

cooperation of the project owner, the Company was able to arrange a proper child care center 

and playground.  As a result, children had someone to look after them while their parents 

were at work.  Other than improving the quality of life for the children, parents can also rest 

assured that their children are cared for, allowing them to work more effectively.                      

  Funeral expense aid

funeral expense aid in case Employee or the parent of an Employee passes away.

 In-House  341,260.- 1,317 96
 External 557,140.- 36 92

Total Amount
(Baht)Type of Training Courses No. of

Training staff
No. of

Training day
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  The Company absorbs limited cost of out-patient medical services for its Employees.  The 

Company also provides insurance to cover in-patient costs and accidents for Employees.  In 

children aged 18 years or younger of its Employees as well.     

  Saving Cooperative
  The Company encourages the establishment of a saving cooperative and named it the      

“Christiani & Nielsen Employee Saving Cooperative” or Co-op in short.  The Co-op is managed 

Co-op staff and allows the Co-op to use company premises. 

  Equal Opportunities

  The Company is committed to providing equal opportunity in every aspect of its business. The 
Company pays remuneration according to Employee’s abilities for each position.  The same 

does not discriminate between able and disabled staff or local and migrant labour, all of who 
are considered equal.  All Employees have an equal chance to develop themselves for career 
advancement. 

  Customers

the Company.  It is the Company’s policy to conduct construction under close supervision at 
every process, starting from the beginning i.e. designing, consulting, and supervising to ensure 
that all buildings are constructed correctly and in accordance with the highest professional 

needs.  The Company has issued the “CNT Standard for Architectural Works” to use as a     
guideline and to be monitored by Quality Assurance (QA) Department which is independent 
from construction operations management.  The QA Department visit worksites to ensure that 
during the construction period and before handing over to customer, all construction works 

The Company also solicits client satisfaction feedback for improving and developing                 
operations to maximize customer satisfaction. Last year, the customer feedback was surveyed 
with a satisfactory result and details thereof are disclosed in the “Corporate Governance 
Report” which is part of the Annual Report. 

  A guarantee period of not less than 1 year or at Owner's requirement is also applicable to      
ensure the safety and quality of the buildings. Moreover, the Company always encourages its 

and quality.  Any Employees or work sites that can submit their innovative plans and methods 
for the consideration of the committee are rewarded, if selected, with cash rewards and  

            
long-term sustainability.  This policy is in line with Company’s mission, which is to “Aim to 
produce high quality works, develop optimum sale and services and develop optimum staff 
cost consciousness”.
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  Suppliers and Creditors

  Suppliers

always ensures that terms and conditions for Suppliers are based on industry norms and      
practices and thereafter, agreed terms and conditions are strictly followed by the Company. 

  Creditors

  Financial Creditors are another important factor of success. They provide funds which are 
particularly required for the Company’s highly capital intensive business.  The Company      
complies with all the terms and conditions of its borrowings, including compliance with the 
objectives of using the borrowed funds, repayment, collateral, and other conditions as may be 
agreed.

  Competitors

  The Company acts within the rules of fair trade, neither attacking trade competitors’           
reputations with false allegations against their companies, nor does the Company access     

purpose.

5. Participating in Social Development 

 The Company strives to meet the declared policy of the responsibility to Company’s stakeholders, 
especially towards the communities which are directly and indirectly related to Company’s 
business.  These communities can be directly affected by the operations of the Company.  The 
Company is aware of its responsibility to these communities and society, does as much as possible 
to absorb social accountability, going beyond what is required by the relevant laws. There are many 
projects and activities in which the Company participates, as its contribution to communities and the 
society (CSR : After Process) as follows:

  Education support: The Company realizes the importance of education as a major mechanism 
to develop the country.  The Company is continuously, in collaboration with customers and 
suppliers like Siam Makro PCL, Home Product Center, Siam Cement Group etc., joined hands 
to support the education to the schools in a remote area.  Last year, the Company joined 
hands with Home Product Center, and contributed 100,000 Baht for the project “Share the 
love to the young students at Huay Sai School” Phetchburi Province. 

  Social Support

  Blood donation: Under the name “CNT’s donation for good faith to the King with the Thai Red 

others and to promote Employees and nearby communities to do merit.  The Company, with 
assistance from Somdejprapinklao Hospital, sets up a blood donation mobile unit at the 

-

an opportunity to prepare themselves for the donation.  This campaign has been regularly 
conducted for many years. During last year, the blood donation drive was arranged 4 times, 
detail as follows:
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   The Company contributed Baht 10,000.- through Mega Home Center Co., Ltd. to Sra Kaew 
Provincial Red Cross for the use of social assistance. 

   The Company contributed Baht 140,000.- to “Tesco for Thai Charity Golf Tournament Year 
11th” organized by Tesco for Thai Foundation.

   The Company purchased products worth a total amount of Baht 313,700 from foundations 
and charity organizations to be given as gifts to its customers on various occasions.

   Cultures and Religious activities

  Supporting Buddhist Religion
  The Company realizes the importance of supporting Buddhism to inherit the good culture of 

the country. The Company and its stakeholders often support cultural and religious activities.  
Last year, the Company supported these activities, as follows:

   Joined with Phong Ploy Anusorn Communites on the occasion of Buddhist Lent ceremony.

   Contributed to Bangna Police Station on the occasion of National Children Day.

   Activity for Songkran Festival involving paying respect to the Company’s Senior                
Management, called “Rod Nam Dam Hua”.

   Joined with Nong Kham Sub-district Admin Organization for the following activities
   o  Activity for Songkran Festival and Rod Nam Dam Hua.
   o  Activity for Loy Kra Thong Day.  

6. Environment Conservation

 The construction business, if conducted irresponsibly, can affect many aspects of the environment, 
causing noise, dust, air pollution etc.  The Company emphasizes on environment protection at its 

 
and tidy construction sites.  

  Housing and camping for staff and workers are hygienic and well protected from pollution.  

  Implementation of solid waste management, such as disposal of garbage, hazardous materials, 
emission of waste water etc.  

  Controlling and monitoring noise pollution during certain construction processes, such as 
digging and drilling.

  Controlling dust pollution from construction processes, the Company’s vehicles and 
machines. 

 As a part of long term environmental conservation, the policy for OHSAS is enforced at the 

environmentally and disabled friendly.  Details are explained in the “Sustainability Report” which   
is part of this Annual Report.

 1/2015 (17th) 23-Jan-15 27 9,450 cc
 2/2015 (18th) 27-Apr-15 52 23,400 cc
 3/2015 (19th) 29-Jul-15 53 23,580 cc
 4/2015 (20th) 29-Oct-15 36 16,200 cc

 Total   72,630 cc

Date No. of Donator
Amount of

Blood Collection
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Sustainability Report

The Company realizes that the construction business affects various stakeholders, and that it may             
especially affect living and safety conditions for not only its own staff but also the environment and       
communities. If the Company’s business is conducted irresponsibly, it will inevitably lead to catastrophic 
environmental and other adverse impacts on communities near the Company or the Company’s        
worksites.  Moreover, it may be harmful to life and property as well. The Company has set a clear policy 
to operate its business with the objective of achieving long-term sustainability. The policy needs to be 
followed by employees and shall be monitored regularly for improvement and ensure that the process 
has been done accordingly.   Policies implemented can be summarized as follows:

Environment   

Since the establishment of the Company, the Company has conducted its business strictly in compliance 
with all related laws and regulations, governed by related authorities for social and environmental          
protection. The Company realizes that simply complying with regulations is not enough, and accordingly, 
a clear policy to prevent harmful effects and pollution from the Company’s work was set up. Reviews are 
regularly conducted to control and monitor the effects of the Company’s work in order to ensure the 
highest level of effectiveness. This policy is updated with the changes in environment to ensure long-term 
sustainable development. 

Occupational Health and Safety Assessment Series: OHSAS 18001:2007 will be set out as a policy and strict 
guideline for the conduct of employees to ensure the Company’s proper management of health and 
safety as well as to minimize pollution and as long term protection for the environment.

With the Company’s target to double its construction income, the Company’s plan was to increase its 
Equipment and Scaffolding Plant capacities, which are important supporting units to the increase of the 
Company’s productivity. The Company realized that increasing the production in its plant, which includes 
equipment maintenance, steel fabrication and erection, etc. may pollute nearby communities. The     
Company therefore relocated its existing plant from greater Bangkok to Sriracha, which does not have 
crowded communities in its neighboring areas. 

The policy for OHSAS will be enforced at the Company’s new plant at Sriracha for maintaining high health 

Apart from the plant relocation, the Company also set up a policy and procedure to protect the              
environment at every worksite.
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The QSHE (Quality, Safety and Health Environment) Department was set up to monitor and ensure that 

construction operations comply with the related laws and regulations.  The QSHE will also ensure that 

quality and safety is in accordance with the high standards and policy of the Company. The aim is to 

prevent or minimize all accidents and negative impacts that may occur during the construction process.  

Some measures adopted by construction sites are as follows:

  During the construction of a high rise building, the building should be surrounded with dust 

protection to protect against falling objects and dust pollution. 

  Advise on the use of equipment and machines. Regularly inspect all equipment and machines 

to ensure that they are safe and ready to be used. 

  Survey the environment and climate to prevent any accidents that may occur, such as working 

under the rain in an open space.

  Keep the construction site and nearby areas clean and tidy.  Clean all truck wheels before 

leaving the construction site.  Proper solid waste management, such as disposal of garbage, 

construction material, hazardous material etc.  

  Control the quality of air and noise around the work site and nearby areas. 

  Proper storage of materials and reusable items on site.

  Check on quality of the construction process to ensure that all the works are in accordance 

with Company’s standards.  This can prevent loss of both time and money. 

  Safety and quality check-lists are provided (in a standard form) in each manual and are to be 

submitted for all construction work sites. 

 
relevant to working in hazardous areas.  This is to ensure that they will be knowledgeable and 

can educate other staff to ensure safe working. 

The Company has also established a campaign for raising awareness about health and safety at work sites 

called “Best Sites for Safety and Cleanliness”, whereby the best performing sites in these aspects are 

improves morale and encourages safety awareness at every stage of their work.  Detailed of this campaign 

is explained in "Corporate Social Responsibilities Report" in This Annual Report

 

New Company Head Office  

consumption and provide modern facilities, including a cafeteria, lounge, fully equipped gym room,        
and external recreation area, to create a pleasant working environment that is also disabled-friendly.        

28 April 2014.



Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited  ANNUAL REPORT 2015 203

Features of the design for an energy saving working place:

 1. Installing LEDs (Light-emitting Diodes) which consume less power, giving more brightness      
with low heat and a long useful life time.  The use of LEDs is calculated to reduce energy 

 2. Installing VRV (Variable Refrigerant Volume) air-conditioning system.  With this system, the 

thereby reduces the heat in the building, and reduces the energy consumed by 
air-conditioners.

 4. Installing motion sensor lights in all restrooms:  A motion detector controls the lighting system, 
and turns the lights on when it detects any motion and automatically turns the lights off after 
a certain period of time.  It facilitates energy saving and generates less heat from light bulbs.

Social 

development of the organization, as well as the country through their knowledge and experience. The 
Company plays an important role in supporting and encouraging its employees and staff, by providing 
various training courses, especially in the Company’s main construction activities.  The Company believes 
that good workmanship will deliver high quality work to satisfy customers.  Although certain employees 
may leave the Company, it is expected that their knowledge, experience and good workmanship practices 
would enable them to deliver good work to other organizations, thereby resulting in the positive long term 
development of the country. 

The Company applies a Competency program as a development tool for employees, whereby all training 
is set in accordance with the Company’s expectation for each position in the organization. All employees’ 
present duties and responsibilities will be evaluated in order to plan for an individual development 
programme for their career path.  Every year, evaluations will be conducted by their supervisors in order 
to prepare plans for future promotions to higher positions.     

The Company also provides in-house training for the Company’s major construction activities, such as 
brick-laying, plastering, carpentry, formwork, erection works, etc.  The Company conducts a test for     
standard workmanship in line with the standards of the Skill Development Department so that these 
skilled labourers can develop their skills to meet with higher standards. For this year, some training 
programmes were developed from the year 2014 in order to increase the Company’s quality of            
workmanship in certain areas.  As for sustained development, after training, they may leave the             
Company to join other organizations without any objection from the Company. 
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With regard to the ASEAN Economic Community, the Company realizes the importance of improving its 
staff’s English communication skills. The Company provides an in-house English Training Program at its 

Details of the various development and training programs are explained in “Corporate Social                    
Responsibilities Report” in this Annual Report. 

Innovation

Through Company’s experience gained in the construction business over the past several decades, the 

increase Company’s productivity with least adverse environmental impact. The objective is to accelerate 
the construction time with lower costs and minimal environmental impact and meet the continuing 
changes required for long term satisfaction of the customer.  

The Company has put in place a campaign to encourage innovation in construction activities by encouraging 

system or new methods of construction which can be proved to be better than existing ways or methods.  
The ideas must comply with Company’s quality standards, lower cost of construction and must be delivered 
in time and in accordance with customers’ needs.  Moreover, the idea must be able to be applied as a 
prototype for other departments or worksites and for long term development to enhance Company’s 
specialist skills and reputation. 

The “Best Innovation Award” is one of such initiatives that have been put in place. The Company has 
appointed its top management to be members of the committee to select the best proposed innovation 

to create long-term sustainability. 

This year, the Company increased the number of Laser Screed Machines to be used in many construction 

standards, while taking less construction time. The special team for the Laser Screed Machine was set up 

customers’ satisfaction.

awarded a commendation to the Company for the recognition for improving the standards of concrete 
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Risk Factors and Risk Management

The Company is aware of the importance of risk management in operating its business under the internal 
and external factors that affect the company’s operations. Thus, the Risk Management Committee was 

Company’s risk management policies.

The Risk Management Department is responsible for the risk management process of the Company,     
overall evaluation and review of both, the internal and external risk situations, as well as reporting the risk 
factors to the Board of Directors.

The important risk factors that may affect the Company’s on-going and/or future business which may 
affect the investors and internal and external stakeholders are as follows:

The state of the property and construction market

The Company’s main revenue comes from construction projects for both, the Government & Private 

of work. The property and construction market are the key factors to the Company’s growth, but these 

well as the political environment, that cannot be controlled by the Company.

The Company thoroughly assessed the market during 2015 - 2016 and settled a strategy for bidding to 
mitigate the risk factors associated with the state of the property and construction market. The Company 
selected and focused on potential projects to increase the work, as well as used all the resources        
available to it to make its bids for projects as competitive as possible, although overall bidding by auction 
was less than in 2014.

The Company is reviewing and adjusting the level of tender margins according to market circumstances, 
and in view of the long term, to reduce construction costs and increase productivity in order to improve 
over-all competitiveness. 

Construction cost
Generally, construction contracts envisage a lump sum price, which means that the Company has to 
absorb the risk of construction cost.  In some cases, construction contracts may have conditions to allow 
increase or decrease of pricing from changing work price per unit of material as per an escalation formula, 
for example, most government contracts.  However, the escalation formula will adjust only certain         

All projects require time to construct, and the time frame may be tight or relaxed, depending on the 
construction contract. The Company cannot set an unreasonably high price or demand too long a 
construction period, as either of these may cause the Company to lose the project to a more competitive 
bidder. Therefore, in order to remain competitive, the Company has to manage the overall purchasing 
volume by ordering big lots to help in bargaining and sign material contracts as early as possible. In order 

which have manageable construction periods, or projects that are split into multiple phases.  This allows 
the Company to adjust the pricing in case of higher material costs in the later phases.
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The delay of construction

Projects may be delayed by the employer, for example, delay in hand-over of the relevant areas, delay 
in approval of matters or requiring numerous changes or additional work, without appropriate time          

laborers, and/or subcontractors. Force majeure events may also cause delay of projects, i.e., events      
completely beyond the reasonable control of either the employer or any employee, e.g. rebellion, war 

of materials and other potentially unforeseen expenses. In case the Company is not adequately           
compensated in the event of such delays, the Company may face a loss or have to litigate with the 
employer to secure its rights.

The Company has a policy to review contracts of service carefully, including inserting provisions to 
mitigate the abovementioned risks, when necessary. The Company also has a focused and dedicated 

a detailed schedule plan, and closely monitors such plan. The project managers will concisely control 
work and arrange regular meetings with the management to track the progress of work every week. As 
such, the management is aware of any problems and accordingly allocates resources, including revising 
strategies to solve such problem in a timely manner.

Overdue payments

The Company’s main income is from providing construction services, where normally, payment is made 
in installments based on the progress of work done, so the Company might be at risk if the employers 

affect the operations.

The Company is aware of these risks; therefore the Company carefully assesses the potential client’s 

Company ensures close monitoring of the work done and payment received from the employers to 
further mitigate these risks.

The amount of working capital

Operation in the construction business requires  the funding of a large amount of working capital to run 
the business. As mentioned before, payment is normally received in installments as per work done after 
deduction of withholding taxes. If the employers do not make timely payments of such installments or 
the Company does not manage the working capital well, it will affect the Company’s ability to get new 
projects and also might affect the performance of the other ongoing projects.

To mitigate these risk factors, the Company has a policy to negotiate the terms of payment concisely and 
ask for advance payment from the employers before start of work. Further, the Company’s experienced 

sources to facilitate the expansion of the Company. 

As at 31 December 2015, the Company had long term loans of Baht 244 million for the construction of 

covenants which, if not complied with, will also result in a default. 
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Compliance Risk
As a publicly listed company, the Company is required to comply with various laws and regulations and 
failure to comply with any one or more of such laws and/or regulations could expose the Company to 
penalties or other legal action against the Company and its Senior Management.  The Company remains 

adopting adequate and effective systems to ensure full compliance with all laws and regulations. 

Major Shareholder holds more than 50 percent shares
As at the date of the Annual General Meeting 2015, Globex Corporation held 581,126,256 shares in         
the Company, which is equivalent to 57.94 percent of all the Company’s issued and paid-up shares.    
Consequently, Globex Corporation can control almost all of the resolutions in the Annual General Meeting 
which includes the appointment of directors or other resolutions which require majority votes, with the 
exception of those matters which as per law or the Company’s Article of Associations require the votes of 
3 of 4 voters present in the Annual General Meeting. For this reason, other shareholders may not be able 
to gather enough votes to take equilibrium on any Agenda proposed by the major shareholder. However, 
the Company has complied with the SET prescribed Good Corporate Governance Policy, Business Ethics, 
and Transparency of Information. The Company has set up principles for the approval of Connected   
Transactions, as per which related parties cannot approve their own transactions. The Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee will consider all Connected Transactions and propose to the Board of Directors 
and/or Shareholder Meeting for approval.

Apart from the above risks which the Company is exposed to, an Investor investing in equity shares of the 
Company is exposed to the risks associated with the equity investment in the Company as a company 
listed in Thailand, which include the following:

 
due to factors affecting the Thai Stock Market as a whole without any connection to the 
performance of the Company. Such factors affecting the Thai Stock Market could include 
political instability or political disturbances, slowdown in growth of the Thai economy, US 
Federal Reserve action, withdrawal of economic stimulus by governments of key export 
markets, general slowdown in regional, Asian or other developed economies and so on.

  Since the investment in the equity shares is made in Thai Baht currency, the investor is 

investor’s investment currency as against the Thai Baht, whereby the investor may suffer a loss 
in the investor’s own investment currency terms if the Thai Baht depreciates against the same 
when the equity shares are sold and the proceeds thereof are remitted back to the Investor 
after converting the same into the Investor’s investment currency.

  The Investor may suffer a loss on his investment in the event one or more Thai laws pertaining 
to the investment are amended adversely. An example of such an adverse change in law 
would be imposition of taxes or other duties on the investment or sale of investment in equity 
shares.

  If the Thai Government introduces exchange controls on investment proceeds or on the        
repatriation of investment proceeds, the Investor’s cost of the investment may increase 
and/or the Investor may not be able to repatriate the sale proceeds of the investment.

  Further, the Investor is exposed to additional risks like lower standards of Corporate             

company management, high proportion of concentrated shareholding with one individual or 
one group leading to unduly high control exercised by the individual or group, unavailability 
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Supervision of the use of insider information

with transparency and on-time to Shareholders, Investors and public.

The Board of directors performed their duties according to laws and regulations regarding the on-time and 
transparent disclosure.  It is the responsibility of Company’s directors, management including staff in IR 

including un-disclose information to public or any information that might effected the Company’s 
business or share price.  The prohibited use of the information receive by being the director, executive 

or related to the Company’s business were set as a policy and use as a guideline for good corporate 
governance, business and employee’s ethic shown on the Company’s website under heading “Good 
Corporate Governance”.     

According to Section 59 of the Securities and Exchange Act, B.E. 2535, Directors, Management and            
Executives (including their spouses and all minors) have to report the change of their shareholding to the 

are requested to refrain from trading the Company’s shares for the period of 30 days before considering 

aforementioned persons have strictly followed the policy
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Internal Control and Internal Audit

The Company recognizes the importance of internal control and internal audit and accordingly, has set up 
an Internal Audit Department which reports to the Audit and Governance Committee to ensure that there 
is an appropriate and effective control system and to have reasonable assurance that the Company can 
achieve the following main objectives in this area:

 1. Operation :

fraud in the operation units. Set up an assessment procedure for review in the following matters:

   Company policies, regulations and authorization;
   Company Procedures;
   Follow up process of operations;
   Reporting and monitoring;
   Laws and regulations;
   Health and safety;
   IT and communication systems; 
   Internal controls.

 2. Financial Reporting : Should be timely, accurate and reliable, including effective performance       
evaluation.

 3. Compliance : Full compliance with the Company’s policies, procedures, laws and regulations.

 1. Control Environment :

   Set  policy and goals of the operations, including effective monitoring;
   Organize, set duties & responsibilities, clearly distinguish the authorization of operations and 

   Establish discipline, competency and training programs to develop staff and help them achieve 
higher capabilities;

   

 2. Risk Management
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 3. Control Activities

  The Company has clearly laid down procedures in all its functions, including a budgeting system 
for controlling and monitoring cost at various construction sites. To ensure that the appropriate 

their targets in accordance with the Company’s established procedures, Code of Conduct, laws 

 4. Information and Communication

close to real time. This data & information includes not only internally generated data but also 

 5. Monitoring

  In addition to monitoring and evaluating from the line of command, the Internal Audit                 
Department is also responsible for auditing and assessing internal control in each functions. The 

improvement. The internal auditor will follow up this corrective and also report to the                

  In the Year 2015, the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee, which comprises of                 

corporate governance, as well as monitor the Company’s compliance with laws and regulations.  

  The Audit and Corporate Governance committee reviewed the Company’s internal control with 
the internal auditor and was of the opinion that the internal control system is appropriate and 

information and communication monitoring to achieve the Company’s goals. The operations of 
the Company are in compliance with all applicable laws, rule and regulations. 

good understanding of the Company’s operations, as Head of Audit.  He has attended various 
seminars in Internal Audit courses with various organizations and assures that he will perform his 

of Auditor must be agreed with the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Notes to consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited and its subsidiary

1. General information

 Christiani & Nielsen (Thai) Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company                  
incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. The major shareholder of the Company is Globex              
Corporation Limited, which was also incorporated in Thailand. The Company is principally engaged 

Road, Kwaeng Bangna, Khet Bangna, Bangkok.

2. Basis of preparation

disclosed in the accounting policies.

(Thai) Public Company Limited (herein after called “the Company”) and its subsidiary, which    
was incorporated in Thailand (herein after called “the subsidiary”) as below.

 b) The Company is deemed to have control over an investee or subsidiaries if it has rights, or is 
exposed, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and it has the ability to 
direct the activities that affect the amount of its returns.

and continues to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases.

policies as the Company.
 e) Material balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiary have been elimi-

Percentage of shareholding

PercentPercent

Nature of businessCompany’s name

Subsidiary (held by the Company)
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3. New financial reporting standards

year and those that will become effective in the future.

 a) Financial reporting standards that became effective in the current year

changes directed towards revision of wording and terminology, and provision of interpretations 

However, some of these standards involve changes to key principles, which are summarised 

below.

  

  This revised standard requires that the entity recognise actuarial gains and losses immediately  

in other comprehensive income while the former standard allowed the entity to recognise    

and its subsidiary already recognise actuarial gains and losses immediately in other                 

comprehensive income.

  TFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 

whether control exists. Under this standard, an investor is deemed to have control over an  

investee if it has rights, or is exposed, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, 

and it has the ability to direct the activities that affect the amount of its returns, even if it holds 

less than half of the shares or voting rights. This important change requires the management to 

exercise a lot of judgement when reviewing whether the Company and its subsidiary have 

control over investees and determining which entities have to be included in preparation of the 

  The management of the Company and its subsidiary believes that this standard will not have 

  TFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

arrangements and associates, including structured entities. This standard therefore has no     
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  TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

  This standard provides guidance on how to measure fair value and stipulates disclosures related 
to fair value measurement. Entities are to apply the guidance under this standard if they are 

The effects of the adoption of this standard are to be recognised prospectively.

 b) Financial reporting standard that will become effective in the future

when they are initially applied.

4. Significant accounting policies

4.1 Revenue recognition
 Construction income
 Revenue from construction contract works is recognised as income, excluding value added tax, on 

the basis of percentage of completion which is estimated by project engineers. Recognised revenue 
not yet due as per contracts is presented as “Unbilled receivables” under current assets in the state-

 Provision for anticipated loss from construction contracts will be made in the accounts as soon as 
the possibility of such loss is ascertained.

 Interest income
 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate. 

 Dividends

4.2 Cost of construction

and overheads, which are recognised on the percentage of completion method.

 Contracts of which incurred construction cost exceeds calculated cost of construction under 
percentage of completion, and cost of project of which revenue has not yet been recognised are 

position, while contracts of which calculated cost of construction exceeds incurred cost of construc-

position.
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4.3 Cash and cash equivalents 
 Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments 

with an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

4.4 Trade accounts receivable 
 Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is 

provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance 
is generally based on collection experiences and analysis of debt aging.

4.5 Inventories
 Inventories, which comprise construction materials and spare parts, are valued at the lower of aver-

age cost and net realisable value.  

 Allowance for diminution in inventory value is made for deteriorated inventories.

4.6 Investments 
 a) Investments in debt securities, both due within one year and expected to be held to maturity, are 

recorded at amortised cost. The premium/discount on debt securities is amortised/accreted by the 
effective rate method with the amortised/accreted amount presented as an adjustment to the   
interest income.

are stated at cost net of allowance for impairment loss (if any). 

4.7 Investment properties
 

initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and   
allowance for loss on impairment (if any).

properties is included in determining income. No depreciation is provided on investment properties 
in land.

 On disposal of investment properties, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and           

derecognised.

4.8 Property plant and equipment and depreciation
 Land is stated at cost. Buildings and equipment are stated at cost or revalued amount less              

accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

 Buildings are initially recorded at cost on the acquisition date, and subsequently revalued by           

regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from fair value at the end of 
reporting period.
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assets, the increase is credited directly to the other comprehensive income and the cumulative 
increase is recognised in equity under the heading of “Revaluation surplus on assets”. However, 
a revaluation increase is recognised as income to the extent that it reverses a revaluation 
decrease in respect of the same asset previously recognised as an expense.  

to the other comprehensive income to the extent that it does not exceed an amount already 
held in “Revaluation surplus on assets” in respect of the same asset.

    Building on leasehold land - period of lease

 No depreciation is provided on land and assets under construction and installation.

 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future 

4.9 Intangible assets and amortisation 
 Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment 

losses (if any). 

and tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be 
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible assets are 

4.10  Related party transactions
 Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company, 

whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

 They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting    

operations.
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4.11 Long-term leases
 Leases of property, plant or equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of   

value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The outstanding 

are depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

 Leases of property, plant or equipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 

4.12 Foreign currencies
 

statements are measured using the functional currency of that entity.

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at 
the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period.

 Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

4.13 Impairment of assets
 At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the 

property, plant and equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset 
may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which 

amount. 

revalued and the revaluation was taken to equity, a part of such impairment is recognised in equity 
up to the amount of the previous revaluation.

 In the assessment of asset impairment if there is any indication that previously recognised               

recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a 

impairment loss was recognised. The increased carrying amount of the asset attributable to a           
reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been             

reversal, which exceeds the carrying amount that would have been determined, is treated as a 
revaluation increase.
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when incurred.

 

 

 The Company, its subsidiary and their employees have jointly established a provident fund. The 

as expenses when incurred.

 

 The Company and its subsidiary have obligations in respect of the severance payments they must 

make to employees upon retirement under labor law. The Company and its subsidiary treat these 

-

ent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit credit method. 

other comprehensive income.

4.15 Provisions 
 Provisions are recognised when the Company and its subsidiary have the present obligation as a 

be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. 

4.16  Income tax 
 Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.

 Current tax

 Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation 

 Deferred tax

liabilities and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted 

at the end of the reporting period. 

 The Company and its subsidiary recognise deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary                

differences while they recognise deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and   

available against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can   

be utilised.
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 At each reporting date, the Company and its subsidiary review and reduce the carrying amount of 

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

 The Company and its subsidiary record deferred tax directly to shareholders' equity if the tax relates 

to items that are recorded directly to shareholders' equity.

4.17 Fair value measurement

orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement date. The 

Company and its subsidiary apply a quoted market price in an active market to measure their assets 

Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a quoted market price is 

not available, the Company and its subsidiary measure fair value using valuation techniques that are 

appropriate in the circumstances and maximise the use of relevant observable inputs related to 

assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value.

categorised within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on categories of input to be used 

 At the end of each reporting period, the Company and its subsidiary determine whether transfers 

have occurred between levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end 

of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

5. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

 
requires management to make subjective judgements and estimates regarding matters that are 
inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures; and 

 Construction contracts

 The Company and its subsidiary recognise construction income by reference to the stage of         
completion of the construction contract activities, when the outcome of a construction contract can 
be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is measured by reference to surveys of works and 
estimates performed by project management. The management is required to make judgement and 
estimates based on past experience and information obtained from the project management.
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 Estimated construction project costs

 The Company and its subsidiary estimate costs of construction projects based on details of the 

construction work, taking into account the volume and value of construction materials to be used 
in the project, labour costs and other miscellaneous costs to be incurred to complete the             

construction service, taking into consideration the trend of the changes in these costs. Estimates     

original estimates.

 Estimated expenses for construction projects

 In determining estimated expenses for construction projects, the management is required to use 

judgement and relevant information to estimate losses that may be incurred from warranties and 

claims on the construction contract works. The estimates are made through a combination of 

information, among others.  However, the use of different estimates and assumptions could affect 

the amounts of estimated expenses for construction projects.

 Leases 

ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, taking into consideration terms and conditions 

of the arrangement. 

 Allowance for doubtful accounts

 In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgement and 

and the prevailing economic condition. 

 Impairment of investments

decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. 

 Property plant and equipment and depreciation

 In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates 

of the useful lives and residual values of the plant and equipment and to review estimate useful 

lives and residual values when there are any changes. 

independent valuer using the depreciated replacement cost approach. The valuation involves 

 In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for impairment on 

a periodical basis and records impairment losses when it is determined that their recoverable 

amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements regarding forecast of future 

revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.
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 Deferred tax assets

the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of 

 

determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase 

rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.

 Litigation 

believes that no loss will result. Therefore, no contingent liabilities are recorded as at the end of 

reporting period.

6. Related party transactions

were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Company, its subsidiary 

and those related parties.

Consolidated Separate
Transfer pricing policy

Transactions with subsidiary 
 (eliminated from the

 statements)

      annum

Transactions with related
 companies
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Consolidated

Trade accounts receivable - related parties (Note 9) 
Construction contract receivables
Related companies (related by common directors

Total construction contract receivables
Retention as per contracts
Related companies (related by common directors

Total retention as per contracts
Total trade accounts receivable - related parties

Other receivables - related party (Note 9)

Trade and other payables - related parties (Note 17)
Related companies (related by common directors

Separate

Total   33,684 42,206

Consolidated and Separate
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7. Cash and cash equivalents

between 0.10 and 1.45 percent per annum (2014: 0.125 and 2.85 percent per annum).

 As at 31 December 2015, bank deposits of Baht 72 million (2014: Baht 87 million) were pledged to 

secure bank overdrafts and bank guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company.

8. Current investments 

 As at 31 December 2015, investments in government bonds carried interest at the rate of 2.6 percent 

per annum and are due for redemption in June 2016 (2014: 3.5 percent per annum and are due for 

redemption in February 2015). The government bonds of Baht 5.5 million (2014: Baht 0.2 million) 

were pledged to secure bank guarantees issued by bank on behalf of the Company in respect of its 

project tender and the electricity use. In February 2015, the Company had redeemed government 

bonds of Baht 0.2 million from bank.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated

Cash  6,877 8,599 6,577 8,285
Bank deposits 192,901 501,064 191,335 445,287
Investment in bond of Bank of Thailand 6,996 - - -

Less: Restricted bank deposits (71,789) (87,383) (71,789) (87,383)

2015 2014 2015 2014

Separate

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated

Government bonds 5,479 901 5,479 901

2015 2014 2015 2014

Separate
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 The trade receivables included amounts receivable from several construction projects of which     

services provided and some of these projects have been subject to legal actions taken by the     

Company.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated

    
Aged on the basis of due dates    
Not yet due 135,265 85,865 88,843 78,871
Past due    
 Up to 1 month 12,329 - - -
 1 - 3 months 3,113 - 2,410 -

Retention as per contracts 99,350 110,377 99,350 76,627

    
Aged on the basis of due dates    
Not yet due 412,227 685,296 412,227 685,296
Past due    
 Up to 1 month 148,730 252,845 148,730 252,845
 1 - 3 months 93,474 44,884 93,474 44,884
  3 - 6 months 10,249 - 10,249 -
 6 - 12 months 9,309 26,667 9,309 26,667
 Over 12 months 153,928 164,833 153,928 164,833

Notes receivable and post dated cheques 98,399 104,123 98,399 104,123

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (113,396) (126,525) (113,396) (126,525)

Retention as per contracts 404,810 382,642 404,810 382,642

Other receivables - related party - - 155 1,141
Other receivables - unrelated parties 3,831 7,455 3,831 7,354
Interest receivable 135 189 134 189

Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (702) (702) (702) (702)

2015 2014 2015 2014

Separate
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 The Company has transferred the calling right for the collections from the construction contract 

debtors of certain projects to a bank to secure the credit facilities of the Company granted by       

that bank.

     

 During the year 2015, the Company reversed the allowance for impairment loss on investment         

in subsidiary of Baht 7.1 million (2014: recorded the allowance for impairment loss of Baht 2.1 

million). 

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated

    
Project value as per contracts 13,319,056 15,289,936 12,460,752 14,428,892
Accumulated amount recognised as revenue on
 percentage of completion basis 9,621,405 10,302,927 8,763,101 9,539,603
Less: Value of total billed  (9,112,052) (9,515,643) (8,279,570) (8,803,548)

Unbilled receivables  509,353 787,284 483,531 736,055

     
Project value as per contracts - 1,176,091 - 1,176,091

Value of total billed - 1,092,240 - 1,092,240
Less: Accumulated amount recognised as revenue on
 percentage of completion basis                  - (1,086,413) - (1,086,413)

Deferred construction revenue  - 5,827 - 5,827
Advances received from customers 397,307 576,284 397,307 569,850
Advance received from customers and deferred
 construction revenue 397,307 582,111 397,307 575,677

2015 2014 2015 2014

Separate

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

CNT Holdings Limited 50,000 50,000 60 60 1,526,230 1,526,230
Less: Allowance for
 impairment loss on investment     (1,477,017) (1,484,117)

2015 2014

Cost
2015 2014 2015

(%)
2014
(%)
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 As at 31 December 2014, the Company had investments in government bonds carrying interest at 
the rate of 2.6 percent per annum and due for redemption in June 2016. These government bonds 
were pledged to secure bank guarantees issued by bank on behalf of the Company in respect of its 
project tender.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Oriental Residence Bangkok Co., Ltd. 0.20 0.20 1,000 1,000
G.E.C. Engineering Co., Ltd. 0.03 0.03 69 69

Government bonds   - 5,634

2015
(%)

2014
(%)

2015 2014

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Cost
1 January 2014 77,707 9,314 87,021
31 December 2014 77,707 9,314 87,021
31 December 2015 77,707 9,314 87,021

1 January 2014 - 6,240 6,240
Depreciation for the year  - 419 419
31 December 2014 - 6,659 6,659
Depreciation for the year  - 419 419
31 December 2015 - 7,078 7,078

1 January 2014 2,133 - 2,133
31 December 2014 2,133 - 2,133
Decrease during the year (366) - (366)
31 December 2015 1,767 - 1,767

31 December 2014 75,574 2,655 78,229

31 December 2015 75,940 2,236 78,176

Land Condominium units Total



ÃÒÂ§Ò¹»ÃÐ¨Ó»‚ 2558  238

 The fair value of investment properties as of 31 December 2015 and 2014 is stated below.

 The fair value of the above investment properties has been determined based on valuation 

performed by an accredited independent valuer, using the market approach.

 As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Company had mortgaged its 8 plots of land with net book 

value of Baht 36 million with banks to secure the bank overdrafts and loans granted by those   

banks.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Land 134,688 130,297
Condominium units 4,354 4,354

2015 2014
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 Since 2013, the Company arranged for an independent professional valuer to reappraise the value 
of its buildings. The revaluations were conducted on 7 November 2013 and 14 November 2013 using 
the depreciated replacement cost approach, the results of which showed a Baht 34 million increase 
in the net book value of the buildings. The Company recorded the revaluation increase of buildings 
in other comprehensive income and the cumulative increase is recognised as the “Revaluation 
surplus on assets” in the shareholders’ equity.

256 million).

lease agreements with net book values amounting to Baht 123 million (2014: Baht 36 million).

 As at 31 December 2015, certain plant and equipment items have been fully depreciated but are 
still in use. The gross carrying amount before deducting accumulated depreciation and allowance 

million).

 As at 31 December 2015, the Company had mortgaged its 9 plots of land with net book value of 

million) with banks to secure the short-term and long-term loans granted by those banks.

 The net book value of intangible assets as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is presented below.

 A reconciliation of the net book value of intangible assets for the years 2015 and 2014 is presented 
below.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Computer software - cost   8,528 -
Less: Accumulated amortisation    (258) -

2015 2014

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Net book value at beginning of year - -
Additions  5,157 -
Amortisation for the year (258) -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment  3,371 -

2015 2014
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million in the form of promissory note, which is repayable in January 2016 and bears interest at the 
rate of 4.72 percent per annum. In January 2016, the Company had already repaid this short-term 
loan.

 The Company has credit facilities for bank overdrafts and short-term loans from the local banks        
of Baht 545 million (2014: Baht 545 million). The facilities are secured by the pledge of the bank 
deposits as discussed in Note 7 and the mortgage of plots of land as discussed in Note 13 and 14. 
The loan agreements contain covenants that, among other things, require the Company to maintain 

and machines for use in its operation, whereby it is committed to pay rental on a monthly basis. The 
terms of the agreements are generally 3 - 4 years.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Consolidated

    
Related parties 2,353 2,773 46 467
Unrelated parties 841,503 870,519 810,442 818,157

     
Related parties - 4,566 - -
Unrelated parties 589,353 940,308 572,445 906,917

    
Unrelated parties 25,299 30,284 25,163 29,935

2015 2014 2015 2014

Separate

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Less: Current portion  (32,357) (9,144)

2015 2014
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 Long-term loans are secured by the mortgage of part of land and construction thereon as discussed 
in Note 14. The loan agreements contain covenants which, among other things, require the        
Company to maintain net interest bearing debt-to-equity and debt service coverage ratios at the 
rate prescribed in the agreements.

 As at 31 December 2015, the long-term credit facilities of the Company which have not yet been 
drawn down amounted to Baht 120 million (2014: Baht 120 million).

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Future minimum lease payments 37,080 100,209 137,289

Less than 1 year 1 - 4 years Total

Less than 1 year 1 - 4 years Total

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Future minimum lease payments 10,655 29,758 40,413

9,144 27,832 36,976

 1. 160 BIBOR + 2.625 Monthly installment of Baht 1.9 million 129,600 152,400

    23 August 2013
 2. 280 BIBOR + 2.625 Monthly installment of Baht 3 million 114,760 150,760

    25 September 2013

Less: Current portion   (58,800) (58,800)

2015 2014(% per annum)(Million Baht)
Loan
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after they retire, was as follows:

 
follows:

 As at 31 December 2015, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term employee 

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

 Current service cost   8,039 7,849
 Interest cost  3,030 2,738
Included in other comprehensive income:
 Actuarial (gain) loss arising from  
  Demographic assumptions changes 1,564 -
  Financial assumptions changes  5,750 -

2015 2014

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Cost of construction 5,349 5,035

2015 2014

(Unit: Percent per annum)

Discount rate 3.0 3.7

Salary increase rate 3.0 - 8.0 3.0 - 8.0

Staff turnover rate 0.0 - 19.0 0.0 - 19.0

2015 2014
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-

23. Statutory reserve

21.  Share capital

22. Revaluation surplus on assets

Consolidated and Separate

Consolidated and Separate
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24. Expenses by nature

25. Income tax

SeparateConsolidated

SeparateConsolidated

SeparateConsolidated

SeparateConsolidated
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26. Earnings per share

SeparateConsolidated

SeparateConsolidated
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27. Dividend paid

 

28. Construction contracts in progress

29. Segment information

 

 January - June

Total
Paid on
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30. Provident fund

31. Commitments and contingent liabilities

Consolidated and Separate

Consolidated and Separate
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32. Fair value hierarchy

33. Financial instruments

 Credit risk

 Interest rate risk

    

Total
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interest
rate

interest
Total

Interest rate
 

Total
Interest rate
 

  

  

  

  

interest
rate

interest
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interest
rate

interest

interest
rate

Total
Interest rate
 

interest
Total

Interest rate
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-

34. Capital management 

35. Approval of financial statements
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for the year 2015

Overview

Christiani & Nielsen Thai PCL is a leading construction company in Thailand providing a wide range of 

services including design and construction of buildings, civil engineering projects, the design, fabrication 

and erection of steel structures and mechanical and electrical installations. The Company works in both 

the Government and Private Sectors.

Performance Overview 

Year 2015 was an improvement over the previous year, even though there was increased competition 

because of fewer jobs being available in the market due to the slow growth of the Thai economy.  As a 

result, there was a 22% decrease of total construction revenues. As a result of better cost management and 

the previous year.  
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Variance

Thai economy as mentioned above, a decrease in new Investments in the Economy, particularly by 

reversal of the estimated expenses for construction projects that will not be incurred in the amount of 

price reduction in the world market continued during the past year, as a result of which, some material 

costs also reduced.

Other income

Revenues

Total revenues  7,355 9,437 (2,082) -22.06%

Gross Margin  336 (96) 432

Statements of Income
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Construction cost

The main costs of the Company were construction materials, subcontractors and labor, which all depend 

the rate of revenue decline as a result of various factors as mentioned above.

Administrative Expenses

Income tax for the year

the Company and its subsidiaries not having to pay any corporate income tax.  
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Comprehensive income

Assets

    24 (354) 378

Varience
Inc. / (Dec.)

Statements of Financial Position Analysis

Assets

Inc. (Dec.) % Inc. (Dec.)
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the year 2015, construction income decreased during the past year, the Company has been able to         
meet the construction schedule and then claim for construction value as per the construction contracts. 
As a result, trade receivables and unbilled receivables including of work in progress have decreased by     

Company has allowance for doubtful accounts with estimates based upon, among other things, past 

appropriate credit control policies and procedures and therefore does not expect to incur material     

a large customer base and the majority of construction services are provided to creditworthy customers.

Past due     

    708 

 % of total construction contracts debtors   72.4% 81.2% 78.4%
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not be incurred as mentioned above.

Accounts payable, other accounts payable and

Inc. (Dec.) % Inc. (Dec.)

Retained earnings

   

Gain on disposal of investment in Subsidiary

Inc. (Dec.) % Inc. (Dec.)

Shareholders’ equity
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million.

Variance
Inc. / (Dec.)

Statements of Cash Flow
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A. 

Companies and subsidiaries

The remuneration of the auditors

Companies and subsidiaries

Auditors of the company. The total amount
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Directors and Management Details
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